AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION

September 18, 2023
7 P.M.

Parchment Citv Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan I11

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of September 5, 2023

5. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

6. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
e State your name and address for the records
» You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
* Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



» Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

7. Consent Agenda
ltems on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealf with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
i,  Warrant No. 1498 — action
it. Credit Card Statement for August 2023 — action
iii. Financial Reports for August 2023 - receive
iv. Kindleberger Park Reservation, Sunken Garden — Frederick Memorial — action
v. KABA 2023 August Report —receive
vi. KATS Meeting Minutes, May 31, 2023 - receive
vii. KAC Meeting Minutes, June 12, 2023 - receive

8. Unfinished Business
A. Water Tower Painting - action

9. New Business :
A. City of Parchment Sewage Collection System Revenue Bond Ordinance - Tan
Koffler, Thrun Law — acties~ {lg gl (explmnad &1 )
B. Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds — Ian Koffler, Thrun Law - action
C. Lease Agreement for Access, Odor Monitor at PW Bldg — action
D. Lease Agreement for Access, Odor Monitor at City Hall — action
E. Leaf Ordinance, Second Reading — action
E. Adoption of Leaf Ordinance ~ action
G. Urban Forestry Tree Grant Approval- action

10. Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda
Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.

11. Mayor and Commissioner Comments

12. City Manager Comments

13. Adjournment




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 5, 2023,
Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayaor Britigan, Commissioners Cooper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras. City Manager Stoddard, City
Attorney Soltis, City Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: Conner.

Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to excuse the absence of Commissioner Conner. Motion
Carried.

Minutes
Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the minutes of the August 21, 2023 Regular
meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
None. Moved by Commissioner Evans supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the agenda as presented. Motion
Carried.

Citizen Comments — ltems ON the Agenda
None.

Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Vice Mayor lordan, supported by
Commissioner Cooper to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
A. None.

New Business

A. - Wastewater Treatment Agreement for USDA - action. City Manager Stoddard started by noting that this
agreement was put before our attorneys for the USDA loan/grants and they noted there are no material changes to the
previous agreement. This new agreement is for compliance for the loans/grants, adding required language. The term is the
same as prior. Questions were asked and answered. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner
Madaras, to adopt the resolution and approve the Wastewater Treatment Agreement as presented, and authorize the
Mayor to sign all documents related to the action. Roll calf vote was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Cooper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Conner.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 6-0.

B. Water Tower Painting — action. Mayor Britigan began by reminding everyone that the water tower was sold to the
City of Kalamazoo when we sold them the water system in 2019, James Baker, COK Director of Public Services, has indicated
it needs to be repainted, and asked that the Parchment City Commission choose a color for both the tower {any color) and
the lettering (either white or black). Questions were asked and answered, discussion took place. Moved by Commissioner
Fooy, supported by Commissioner Evans to table the decision until the 1% meeting in October in order to explore/research
shades. Motion Carried.

C. Leaf Ordinance, First Reading — action. Mayor Britigan explained that making the previous leaf ordinance more
citizen friendly has been a concern of Cammissioner Conner’s, adding that this new language accomplishes that. City
Manager Stoddard noted that discussions with DPW resulted in more flexibility in the when and how of the task of leaf
pickup. Attorney Soltis added that the language does not say when or how many times pickup will happen, but does
address where leaves are to be placed for pick up. Discussion with commissioners resulted in three small changes to this




Minutes of the September 5, 2023 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12,

reading. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the Leaf Ordinance for First
Reading with the three changes noted. Motion Carried.

D. Homecoming Parade — action. Mayor Britigan referenced the memo from Ms. McManus regarding the PHS Student
Council request for Friday, October 6% at Spm. The route begins at the park/library, travels north on Riverview, turns east
on G Ave, then south on Orlent and into the high school parking lot; no fireworks are planned. City Manager Stoddard
added that KTwp Police and Fire departments are available to staff it, with the cost being born by the schools. Moved by
Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Fooy to approve the parade as requested. Motion Carried.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Madaras thanked the City Manager for the update on the oxbow, excited to see work beginning.

Commissioner Fooy noted the tube broom is for the street sweeper, then joked he’s looking forward to no more raking at
his house.

Mayor Britigan reminded everyone that the Scottish Festival is Saturday at 9 am, and the Veterans Memorial dedication is
Monday the 11* at 6 pm.

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard said she had nothing to add, then offered anyone with questions or concerns to call or text her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 7:53 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



City of Parchment

Check Register Report

Warrant 1498

Check Check Date Vendor Name Description Amount
37761 08/31/2023 BRONCO ASPHALT MAINTENANCE CITY HALL PARKING LOT 1,398.00
37762 08/31/2023 COMPANICN LIFE LIFE 8& AD&D INS - SEPTEMBER LIFC3712 66,50
37763 08/31/2023 CONSUMERS ENERGY CITYWIDE MONTHLY ENERGY USE 1,757.63
37764 08/31/2023 VOID

37765 08/31/2023 CUSTOM SANDBLASTING 23 ENGRAVED VETERAN'S BRICKS 550.00
37766 08/31/2023 DEREK MENCHINGER 2023 CONSULTING-SPEAKER, EQUIPMENT, RESE 715.00
37767 08/31/2023 GOGGIN RENTALS TRENCHER FOR VET'S MEMORIAL 231.10
37768 08/31/2023 HANDLEY'S TREE SERVICE PLAYGRQUND MULCH: 08/08/23 100.00
37769 08/31/2023 J & H OIL COMPANY FUEL CHARGES - 08/01 TC 08/15/2023 57511
37710 08/31/2023 J & H OIl. COMPANY 375 GALLONS DIESEL FUEL 1,271.26
37771 08/31/2023 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK LIABILITY IN5 - GENERAL FUND - POLICY #MO 11,808.00
37772 08/31/2023 POINT AND PAY MONTHLY CC SERVICE FEE 50.00
37773 08/31/2023 PUBLIC MEDIA NETWORK DIRECT TV (APR-JUNE) FRANCHISE FEES 2,606.80



Fage 2 of 4

Account Number; XXX XXXX XXXX 1546
Statemant Closing Date; 08/28/23

Credit Limit

Credits Purchasea

. Cash Advances

Total Activity

Name and Account Number

JIM DUBY

HKXXH OO XHKX 1892 $3.000 $0.00 $1,305.03 $0.00 $1,305.03
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN

KAXRH XK XXXK 9114 $3,000 $0.00 $846.29 $0.00 $845,29
NANCY R STODDARD

KKK XXXKXKXX 7241 $5,000 $0.00 51,787.99 $0.00 $1,767.9¢
TY J WOLTHUIS

KXXK XXHK XXXX 7874 $3,000 $0.00 $214.93 $0.00 $214.93
SHANNON STUTZ

KXHK XKKK XKAK 9128 $85,000 §0.00 $1.776.95 $0.00 $1,776.95

i

PHIL WOLTHUIS Credlt Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Tetal Activity
SO XOOTOK 1793 $5,000 $0.00 $630.74 $0.00 $6839.74
Post Date Tran Date  Refarence Numhbar Transactlon Deseription VCN Amount
08/03 0B/62 023009632143003183427563 KIRBY BUILT PRODUCTS BATAVIA IL $638.74
BILL CAHILL Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity l
RO KO KKK 1301 $5,000 $61.24 $329.80 $0.00 $268.36
Post Date Tran Date  Refarence Number Transaction Description VCN Amaount
o727 Q7/25 85179243207700809004492 CONE WAY PRODUCTS 269-343-3772 M| %188.?5
0810 08/08 02306373221100163741820 MEMARDS KALAMAZQQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN Mi 113.66
0811 08/09 02305373222100186335830 MENARDS KALAMAZOQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI 15.33
08/14 08/09 02306373222100509120043 MENARDS KALAMAZOQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI -561.24
08/25 08/23 02305373236100187132649 MENARDS KALAMAZQO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $11.96
JiM DUBY Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
JOOOK 00K XXX 1892 $3,000 $0.00 ' $1,305.03 $0.00 $1,305.03
Post Date Tran Date  Refersnce Number Transactlon Deseriptlon VCN Amount
08/03 08/02 55432863215209793508061 CARTER LUMBER KALAMAZOO M| $99.75
08/04 08/02 02305373215100185244124 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN Ml $5,96
08/04 08/02 85178243215980005540831 STEENSMA LAWN AND POWE KALAMAZOO M| $284.68
08/07 08/03 02305373216100181131746 MENARDS KALAMAZQO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $20.95
0815 08/14 05345883226300300476557 THE KENDALL GROUFP INC, PORTAGE M| $1.8
08116 08/14 (63458832263003004 76482 THE KENDALL GROUP INC., PORTAGE MI $182.26
0815 08/14 053458832263003004 76831 THE KENDALL GROUP ING. PORTAGE MI $295.62
08117 a5 02306373228100174208037 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $115.27
08/21 08/17 023053732301001 76466463 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $1.
08/21 0817 02305373220100176466360 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $20,99
Ga/24 08/23 82711163236000010936715 LS MULDERS LANDSCAPE KALAMAZOO MI $60.30
08/24 02305373235100156728341 MENARDS KALAMAZOD EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $197.97
CAMRCN J BOEKHOVEN Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
JOOK XRXX XXX 9114 $3.000 $0.00 $845.28 $0.00 $845.29
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
o7i27 07/26 55480773208191004067438 FARM & FLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE M| $74.95

(transactions continued on next page}

00000400 - 000327 - 0001 - 0002 - 2

i
i
H



55480773208191004057420

Page 3 of 4

Account Number: 2000 X300 XXXX 1546
Statement Closing Date: 08/28/23

0727 07/26 FARM & FLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE MI $200.95
07/27 07/26 054388432073060278683868 FSPOKLN BROTHERS KALAMAZOO M! $345.00
07/28 07/27 5545370320804200003568¢8 ADVANCE AUTC PARTS #17 KALAMAZOO M| $10.6
08/07 08/03 05140483216716039632023 HARDING'S MARKET #36 PARCHMENT M| $6.42
08/97 08/04 02305373217100 198599248 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M $44.9
08110 08/08 52707153221016191535053 THE HOME DEPQT #2728 PORTAGE M| $41.95
0814 08/11 55432863223202424078349 LOWES #00785" KALAMAZOO MI $5.4
08/14 0810 02805373223100 176803898 MENARDS KALAMAZOC EAST COMSTDCK TOWN MI $37.92
08/25 08/24 5543286323620639834637 1 LOWES #00785" KALAMAZOO $67.95
NANCY R STODDARD Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity |
HOOKK XK XXKK 7241 $5,000 $0.00 §1,787.90 $0.00 $1,787.9%
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VEN Amount
0vi28 o727 062300963208100144815180 KIRBY BUILT PRODUCTS BATAVIA IL $1,362.99
08/03 08/02 85500593214900015458832 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEA 734-6862-2246 MI $425.00
TY JWOLTHUIS Credit Limlt Cradits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KX XXXX 7674 $3.000 $0.00 $214.93 $0.00 $214.93
Post Date Tran Dats  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
07/27 07/26 55480773208101004067446 FARM & FLLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE M! $214.93
SHANNCN STUTZ Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity |
JOOOC XXXX XXX 8125 $5,000 $0.00 $1,776.95 $0.00 $1,776.95
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amcunt
0731 07728 55432863209208124718637 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO §119.98
07/31 07728 55500363209872680483634 MARANA GROUP KALAMAZOO M| 5411.71
08/04 0efo2 85140513215800016000016 CORNERSTCNE OFFICE 58 AVALENCE@CORN MI $273.00
08/08 08/07 82711163219000008025232 PIXELVINE FREEPORT MI $89.78
08/14 0812 05410193225105707858579 QUILL CCRPORATION 800-9823400 SC $14.07
08/14 93/13 82711163225000007472510 PIXELVINE FREEPORT MI $75.00
08/18 08/15 62712913228000000251248 CORPORATE TECHNCLOGIES 7018934056 MN 463,50
08/24 08/23 55432863235206005173458 SPECTRUM 868-707-7328 MQ 299.94
08/25 08/24 TE500893236900012400048 REGISTER COF DEEDS KALAMAZOO MI $30.00



£9°21 62 60T L TL LEZO'T TLLZC'T 00 LET 8 abrasod 000" 0E£L-00Z2-TOT
000 00700876 000 000 00 008 ‘s JTIPUSE JUSWAITIST YWII 000 PEL-00C-TOT
€% ET 95°g9T1°'¢C 6L°89T PFGEE 00°86%°Z SIRDTPOK 000" ZZL-002-T0T
000 00°S2L 000 0G0 00-SeL uotjesusduo) S,IIHIOM 000" 02L-002-T0T
56°9T1 £ 868762 6T"TEQ’E 29 10179 00°000°9€ uoTsuUad 000" 8TL-00Z-TOT
65°€ 15°958°¢ 6FETT 6V EFT 00°000'F 2TgTIoNPSd SouRInSUT T00°9TL-002-T0T
S0°€T 9L LBTEY 2L 9rL’¥ Y2 2676 o0-089’'zZL oouRInsSul SITT/TRITISOH 000°9TL-00Z-TO0T
gz ET L9°08E"6 ZLTITL EETFER T 00°SsT80T A3TInoes TEIDOS 000" STL-002~T0T
£0°G1 L0"6007ZF 9T"Z0E’¥ £6°0EF "L 00T0PT ‘6% SWIL 3I'd - [[od4ed 000 E0L-002-TOT
ZZ°ET z9°7Z9'8T1 75°025°6 8€°L90'8T 000869 ‘98T BUTL TINE - TToIARd 000°20L-002-T0T
TOTIeIISTUTULY - Q07 adag
80" v T9°TvF‘2E 90" LET’T GE'ZLG'ST 00°%T08S satiersthbol - Q0T 3dag Telog
00" 00T T£°0 0070 69°11C'%C 00 zZ1Z'%e pung I=y3lo 03 I2FJSUBIY 000°666-00T-T0T
000 00 60€ 0070 000 00608 STOSUBTTSDSTH 000°856-00T-TOT
082 6L°5007°G 0070 TZ ¥1T 00'0ST’S butystrand % Butjutag 000°006-00T-T0T
00°0 00 090 00" 00°0 00-090°2 UoTINYTIUO) burTTressem 100 088-00T-T0T
000 00" 0EC'T 000 000 00°0E0°T uoTIoWoId A3 TUNURLO) 000°088-00T-T0T
00°00T  (FL°059) BL70S52 FLT0G9 an-o BUTUTEAL ® £33N TIEUT 000°098-00T~T0T
00°0 00°5%6°T 0070 0070 00°G6%5°T song ¥ sdTYsSISqUeR 0007 0EB-00T-T0T
TZ°1 00 0TZ 2T 00°GL 007081 00 09g‘2eT TAZBE TENJOBRIJUOD/TRUCTSEDI0I 0007 008-00T-T0T
89°T 26°80L 000 80721 00 TZL serTddng Buriexado 000" 0FL-00T-T0T
12 85°9%Z L8'9 A 007252 2IBOTPSH 000 22L-00T-TOT
00°0 o0-96¢ 000 000 00°962 ucTiesueduo) S, I53I0M 000 02L-00T-T0T
6172 SLTGG0°T 5¥°6%¢ Gz €T 00°6L0°T A3Tanoeg TeToog 000" STL-00T-TOT
LT % 00°GZ9°8 00°SLE 00" GLE 00°000°6 awTL 318d - TIeIAEg 000 £0L-00T-TOT
aaTieTsTheT - Q0T adeg
saInj}Tpusdxy
rZev 0L"9E7 906 Z6°T86 ‘0L 0£°Z6T°6L8 00°622°S8L"T SHANAATA TYLOL
vZ 6% 0L 9E7 ‘906 Z6 T86 ‘0L O£ C6T'6LE 00°'629°58L°T 000 1dsa TEIOL
€6 8E ST 0Z% ‘€ S8 6LT T S8T6LT T 00 009°s SOAN0OE DUTOURUTI T2YI0 000" 569-000-T0T
PETTE 00"EEL'GT 00289 00°L92 % 00°000°0%2 STNOSURTTIISTH 000 F69-000-T0T
00°0 00°000°02T 000 000 00000021 pPeegIsAg JI0J JUSUSSINQUTSY 000 089-000-T0T
0070 00 000°LET 00" 0 00°0 00°000°LZT spung I3yl WoLi SISFISUBIL 000°9.9-000-T0T
61792 99°g¥S’‘E PEOITE'T FETLSTT 00°008 % SJUBSWEEDAUY UQ IEDIASJUT 000 ¥99-000-T0T
¥0° ¢ 16°9€8 "L 0" 1L 60°€9T 00°000°8 S2UTA OTFIEAL 000°299-000-T0T
000 00700071 000 0070 00°000°T paiIopuay S20TAIDS I0F s3LIRUD 000 ZE9-000-T0T
PG°ST 00" BGT'T1Z 0028 ‘8¢ 00°Z¥8 '8¢ 0070007052 XBY €2TBF 93B3 000°GL5~000-T0T
0070 00700085 000 0070 007000 8% JURT I21EM - JURID 83181E 000 F#S-000-T0T
0070 00-8eg'CE 000 0070 00°8ZZ‘zE putpung terspad L3430 000" 825-000-T0T
G8°0 8T %88 8ET TP FST ZBS6T'T 00°0800FT SUCTIDOTIO) 8318eM PITOS 000" ¥5¥-000-T0T
000 00°00L’2 000 Q00 00°00L72 gead U0T3eaIssy 000 E57-000-T0T
Z0°12 9T TLL'ZT 78 66EE F8°66L°E 00 TLT 9T so8d UOTSTARTED 000 Z5¥-000-T0T
LETE GO 0E6 VT 00°66T 007028 007057 'GT S84 pue SSULITT 000" TST-00C-TOT
19724 06"8%T°6 0T "TSZ B2 0T 152°%2 Q0" D0F ‘€8 £394 UOTAIDSTTOD 3T 000 8%7—000-TOT
8870 PL P96 E 9z se 9z GE 007000k soxe] uo AjlTeuag 000" SHE-00C-TOT
000 00002 '¥BT 000 00°0 00" 00Z 'FFT ¥BJ, 2Ieyg geig AJTUNWWO [RDO0T] 000°TH¥-000~TOT
zET00T  (00°L) 000 00°L0Z'2 a0-00z‘z SRTITTIORI TRTIISNPUT — SDKB] 000 S0F—-000-TOT
T0°00T  (0O°¥L) 000 00" 5487008 00°008 7008 eNuUsARY XBL 000 ¥OFP-000-TOT
000 3dsg
SonuUaADY
QHO TEHENES — TOT pung
assn (" IYHEONGY) TNHEON (ASYAIDHT) ASYHIONT  (TYRHONAY) TVWWAON LADANE ARANANY NOILATIDSHA JIIHAN 1D
I9ad % HONYTYE €202/T€/80 HINOHW €202/TE/B0 ) ¥Z-€£20¢
HIHVIIVAY Hod ALIATIOV HONY'TYd d.LA

JusuygosIedg -dd
555 1188
Wd ¥T:20 €20Z/£1/60

€Z0Z/TE/80 DNTIANT dOTIRd

Z1/1 :obeg LNAWHDYYA A0 ALID ¥04d LA0dHY FANLIANEAXH INY HNNIAEY



VLU6T T8 LB8T'T Z9°ZHL 61762 007087 °T BABDTPIN 000 ZCL-0FF-T0T
00°0 00-05e‘E 0070 000 007 05E‘E uoTlesusduc) §,I9]I0N 000 02L-0FF-TOT
S0°ET £6 756 'CE LT LTF 2 LO"GP6°F 00006 ‘LE woTsUSd 000" 8TL-0FF-TLOT
Z9TEFT  (6L°9F0'T) 6L°9FF S 6L°9%F’E 00'00F ‘2 2TqTIONPaJ SDURINSUT TO0 9TL-0FF-TOT
$6°9T BLTOTL'¥E L1 1eS’E TZTEBO’L 00°008 Tk souraNSUl SFTT/TEITASOHR 000 9TL-0FF-TO0T
L1712 EL°0S9'F ZL 609 LT 6%2°T 00°006°S AzTanoeg TeT20S 000 STL-0FF-T0T
6Z°9T SLTZTI9'6L 0S5 T0G ‘L ST LBRST 00°00T'S6 SwTJ Ting - [rcziEg 000°Z0L-0FF-TOT
SBDTAXSG DTTANd - QFF 3d=a
L5 8T 0Z°6E£8°F0T 19°'€E6 6 08°006 ‘€2 00" 0FL8ZT 2ITd - 9¢gg adeq TRaOL
00°0 007068% ‘ST 0co 0070 00" 0S¥ ‘ST Teztde) 000 0LE-9EE-TOT
0070 00°0CE‘OT 000 000 00°00E 0T 8I030RIJUCD JUTER ¥ ITeday 000 0E6-9EE-TOT
LT7LT 0E"6TE'Z ZL 61E oL 08Y 00°008°¢ S9TATTTIN 000" 026-9€E-T0T
19°9L 05°806°¢ 0G 0EB'E 05" T6F “TT 00°000°ST spucg 3 @0UERINSUT 000 0T6-9€E-TOT
EETLT BETGLS'E 0C 08T 19 6FL 00°GZE'F SUOTIRD TUTUAIO ) 000" 0§8-9€E-T0T
LT'6T 00°0S£ ‘29 00°SLG'S 00°0ST'TT 00°0D0G €L TAIDE TENIDBIIUOD/TRUCTSEIIOA 000 008-9£E-T0T
00'0 00°80T 00" o 000 00°501 gat1ddng Ajsgeg 000 0BL-8EE-TOT
00'0 00" 0€0°T 000 0070 00°0E0°T gatrddng aourusjuter 2 artedsy D00 GLL-BEE-TOT
18°¢ T0°T00°T 6682 66°82 Q0°0E0°T ITO 3 SUTTOSED 000 9VL-8E€E-TOT
oo 007002°S 000 000 00°00Z°G sat11ddng burjgerado 000 0FL-3EE-TOT
8114 - 9g£¢ 3dag
£€°9T 00996 ‘GLE 05 ¥89'9€ 00°69€ €L 00 SEE‘6FF @DTTOod —~ Q0¢ 3dsg Telol
L9°91 00 GF8’9%¢E 057989 °9¢ 00" 69E7EL 00" FIZ 0F% ‘AT TRN}ORIJUOD/TRUOTSESST0Id 000 008-00E-TOT
000 00°€0T 00" 0 000 00" €0T 2I2DTPaN 000" ZZL-00E-TOT
0070 00819 000 000 00819 A3Tanosg [RIZOS 000 STL~00E-TOT
00" 0 00°00% ‘8 00°0 000 00°00% '8 = QWTL 3Ied - TToxAeg 000" €0L-00E-TOT
aoTTod - (0 adeg
LETET 05°198°22 GZ*90T°1 0G°CTL'E 00°FLG'9C seoTAdsg TebeT - Tz adea TRiOL
09°2 0616876 SLTET 057797 00 F60 0T 1933 S0TTOd-ADUIOL Y 000" Z08-0T2-TOT
£6°02 D0"0E07ET 05°290°1 00 0S% ‘¢ 00 08% ‘9T TeIsuen - AsSurolay 000" T08-0T2-TOT
s30TAISg TebaT - Tz 3dag
T8 FT LG 0LO'LEE LOTFLI0E EFBTE 09 00" 68E'LOY UoT3eIlSTUTWPY - 00Z 3dsd Te30g
0070 00°000°2T 000 00°0 00 000‘ZT TedoUTIgd-3UsSW2ATISE 3420 000'166-00Z-T0T
00°00T  (8T1°22€) ST ZL ST ZZE 0070 SROSUBTT2OSTH 000°656-002-TO0T
000 00°6E0°E 000 0G0 00°6EQ‘E SI03DBIZUOD JUTEH 3 rTeday 000 QEB-00E2-T0T
LETEe 6L CTLFE GF 619 TE 6501 00"2EG‘F SSTITTTIN 000°0Z6-002-10T
Z1 08 00" 95% ‘T 00°E£G66°T 00 6SRB'S 00 €IE‘L SpUCH 3 SDURINSUT 000 0T6-00Z-TO0T
0G0 00709072 0070 00°0 000902 butysTTOnd 3 BuTjuTId 000°006-002-TO0T
FL°8Z 567086 00°0 S0 8SE 00°6EE'T BUTUTRIL ¥ £93N3TISUT 000°098-00Z-T0T
30°£¢ £0°58L7°% GETOTO'T LETEEL'T DOTBTG L SUOTIRD TUNULIO) 000" 058-002-T0T
T0°T 0S5 E2Z'T 00" 6 06721 0pT9ge’T gong 3 SAdTYSISUDR 000" QE8-002-T0T
FL 0T SLTEEL'B 05 ET9 SZTTIS0T 00°68L'8 §20TAZ8S Zelnduc) 000°508-002-T0T
9661 257958°871 ET G161 8% "TOL'¥ 00°866°'¢€e TAZSS TENIOEIZUCD/ [RUOISS2I0Id 000°008-002-T0T
000 00°€81°2 00-0 000 00°€9T 2 saTTddng souURPUSIUTEH 5 aTedsd 000 SLL-00Z-T0T
59" LS SE"ZLE LG9 EZE FOTLETT 00709072 set{ddng buriexado 000 0FL-002-TOT
goanirousdxy
ANOd TTYEENID - TOT pumid
agsn {TYIIONEY ) TEHHEON (ISYTADHA) ASVAMONTI  (TVWYONAY) TIVWHON LADANd GHANANY NOTLATHISHa YAGHON 19
oad % AONYTYS £20Z2/T€/80 HLNOW £202/TE/RD ¥Z—-£202
ATIVIIEAY d0d ALIAILOV FINVTIVE OIX

Z1/%2 1obeg

£202/1£/80 ONIAONE JOI¥Ed

INEWHDYYI 40 ALID 904 IY¥0dHY EYNLIAONAdXH ANY HONIAMYH

juswyoIed 49
g5g rI=sn

W ¥1:20 £20Z/ET/60



LF6T T2 ELLICEY T TEToggfseT 6L SFT'F7E 00 6T6°LIL'T SHANLIANEAXE TELOL
¥Z6F 0L*9EF ‘906 26 TBE 0L 0E"Z6T'6LE 00°6297G8L'T SHOANTATY TYIOL
1ANAd TYMENES - 10T pung
LE 6T TZ ELL'EZV'T TE°0EE‘GET 6L°GSPT FFE 00"6T6°LYL'T STUNILTANIIXT TEIOL
1z°02 95 L958FT T8 BIL 8T Py 199 'LE 00°6Z€£°98T SANYTOD % UOTIBDIADSY ‘SyABd - T[54 1d9Q [EROL
00°0 0008t ’e 00°0 00°0 00708T % Testded 000 0LE-TSL-TOT
TG GET0PS'ET 000 59765571 007000752 SIOIDRINUCY " JUTRH 3 arTeday 000 0E6-TSL-TOT
XA L6 EB8’F TF 118 £0°62F 2 Q0 ETE‘L S9TITTTIN 000 0E6-TSL-TOT
BE 8L 00°GES'T 00°668°T 00°685°% 00°00T ‘L SPUCH ? IDURINESUT 000 0T6-TGL-T0T
0070 00°000°ST 0070 000 00 000 ST TAZBE TENIORIIUOD/TRUOTSSBICI 000°008-TGL-T0T
00°0 00" ZT1¥ 00°0 000 00 2TV setrddng Aasgeg 000°08L-TSL-TOT
LL"8T 8L°9.8°0T 8L GF0'T 2T E£165°2 00 06E €T sarrddng sourusjuTel ¥ xiedsy 000 GLL-TSL-TOT
6% FE GE°688°T ZhTLWB 9 K66 00 P88 IT0 3 SUTTOSED 000 9FL-TSL-TOT
90" %2 6% 59 ST €6 TG R0 00058 21EDTP3N 000 ZZL-TSL-TOT
00°0 00°006°T 0o o 000 00°00S'T uotjesuaduol §,I9I0M 000 0ZL-TSL-TOT
65702 G6°6Z9°LT 09°%9c’2 SF 0LG F 0000z ¢ uotsusd 000 8TL-TSL-TOT
5L°967  (0S°¥GE°T) 05°%¥6L°2 0§ FSL T 000G 'T STUTILNPSY POURANSUT T00 9TL-TSL-TOT
P16 187 £29'12 8T°690°T 6T°9LT7°2 00 008'ET PoUBRINSUL 8ITT/Te3Tdsoy 000" 9TL-TSL-TOT
66°F¢ £2°6z9°¢ 8€°86¢ LLTFLE 00006 ‘¢ AjTanosg TeIDO§ 000" STL~TSL~TOT
8¥F G2 £5°086 7TV 6E'6LF’9 LETBTZTHT 00 008’58 SWTL TInd - [LoZAeg 000" E0L-TSL-TOT
2IN]IRD ¥ UoTiesdneyd ‘sided - [4. 1ded
6798 LLTLEBL LE BP9 £2°291'0S on-000’‘8s sesuadxg juedd JURTd I9IRM - TS 3doq Teiod
00" 00T  (L0°956) LET6FO L0956 00 o S2TITTTIN 000°0Z26-T65-T0T
FLOT8 g1"€58'8 000 F89FT ‘6% 007000785 TATSS TENJORIJUCD/TRUOTSSSIOI 000" 008-T65~-T0T
00'00T  (2£°66G) 000 28166 00°0 saTrddng Puraeasdo 000 0FL-T66-TOT
mmmﬁmﬂxmﬁ JUeID) JUBTd JL33eMm — T4 #Q@Q
1£°6T 00°680F8E F9°0€8‘9¢ 00 6%7 ‘69 00"8ES'ESH senTaISg OTTANd - 0% 3dag TeloL
000 00000 ‘GF 000 000 00 000 °SE TesTden 000" 0L6-07F-T0T
00°00T  (SL°0GE) SLUOL GLT0GE 000 STIOBURTTODSTH OO0 S56-CTF-TO0T
SL'ST ET°FT0 6 68°756°T L8 6ZLE 00" 7STCT SZOIVEAJUOD "JUIRK § ArTedey 000" 0£6-07F-T0T
88°ET L9°FLGFE 91" %00°¢ €L SZ0Y 0o 000’52 butaybrr j3e813g 000 926-07F-T0T
L9°6T 60 B6T L 06986 T6729L°T 00°196°8 SATATTTI 000°026-07F-T0T
8L EL 0 €LG°T 0SS SLF T 06792k 'V 00°000°9 SPUOE ¥ SOURANSUT 000°0T6-0FF-T0T
000 0G"STS 0070 000 00616 uoTiowaad Al TUnuAuG) 000°088-0FF—-T0T
0070 00" 60E 0070 000 00°60£ pututeI] ® §2303TISUL 000°098-0FF-T0T
oEEe ¥O 06L 86 6TT 96°6€¢ 00°080°T SUC TIED TUNUIIO] 000°058-0FF-TOT
000 00" 26 00" 9 00" o 00°LE6 song 3 sdTUSIALWSH 000" 0E8-0FF-TOT
¥8°1¢ Z0"SIv ‘2 LT 00F 86 FLY 00060 °¢ TeIUSY WMIOFTUfL 000 5T8-0%F-T0T
06" FT PETGZ90TT TFEEL'6 99" CLERT 00000 °0DET gabIeyn UOTINSTTOD UsTqny 000" 0T8-0FF-TOT
I8°T ZZ 6186 8L708T 8LT08T 000000t ‘AZSE [EN1OBIAUO)/TRUCISSSI0Id 000 008~-0FF-T0T
00" o 00°STG 000 0o o 00 GTS saTrddng Aysgeg 000 08L~0FFP-TOT
68°FT 8T°29¢'6 2976921 ZRTLEGT 00°000°1IT seTrddng sourPUDIUTER ¥ ATedsy 000 SLL~0PP-T0T
1Z°5¢ SETEBE’E TF 566 G9TEFTT 00 ZEsS Y 11O 3 surlosed 000 9FL-0FF-T0T
00" o 00°SL6'Z 00°0 000 00 §5LS°¢C gorrddng Buriezadp 000 0FL-0FF-TOT
soIn Tpusdxy
annd TYEENID - TOT pund
Jqasn (TYRHEONGY) TWWHON (ZSYHIDHd) ASYTIONT  (TWWHONEY) TVHWHEON LIsand dHaNTHy NOILAIEDSHa YEIHON 1D
1909 % TONETVE £Z0Z/TE/80 HINOH £Z0Z/T1E/80 vZ-£202
AT IINAY H0d ALIATLOV HONYTVE dLX

Z1/¢ :obea

€20¢/TE/ 80 DNIANT qOTdHdd

INHWH2YYd A0 ALID 904 I¥0OddEd JENLICGNHdXH OGNV HONTAEY

juswyoxed :4g
Sg8 IIsSs()

W3 FPT:20 £202/£1/60



SHANLIANAXHE 3 SANNIAHLY 40 LHN

ST T120'c (IS 9EE LTS) (6£°8FE"79) 15°9¥0‘6ES 00°DTL'LT
auOd TYEENID - TOT pund
assn { TONMONGY ) TYRION (ASYAMDEd) ASYHEEONI  (TUMONDY) TYHMON LADENT THANAHY NOTILATUDSHEd YIFHON T
Ioad % AONYTYE £202/T£/80 HINOW £Z0e/TE/80 ¥Z-£202
HTHEIIVAY MOA ALTATILOY HONYIYd dLA

CL/V

rabeg

£202/TE/80 ONIGNE A0INHEd

LNURHIIYd J0 ALID ¥0d LHOdEd HUALIANHdXHE ONY H0NHATL

JuswyoIed :4d
585 tIZ28N
Rd §PT:Z0 £202/€1/60



000 00°0LE 6 000 000 00 0LT'6 aTeEs 000" ESL-8LF-20C
98°0¢€ 6T 2TL 187 LTIE T8°LTE 00"0£0°T TIO % SUITOSED 000" 9FL-8LF-20C
T8 LT LO"GTIT $8°0T £6°FT 00" 0FT QAT TPOH 000 ZZL-8LF-20C
000 007029 oo ocT 0 00029 uoTjesuaduo) §,I33(I0M 000" QZL-8LY-20¢
08 FT FL TLS 2 £2°012 98" 82% 00°000°E UOTEUSF 000" 8TL-8L%-Z20C
000 00°05¢ 00°0 00" 0 00 05¢ ATIIONPSQ SOURINSUL T00°9TL-8LF-Z0C
PP 6T L8 9TF 2 £5°LZE £1°£88 0070007€ oouRINSUT 8ITT/TR3TdsSOH 000°9TL-8LF~-20C
SEULT LS E0G TET9F £7'90T 00079 Ajtanoeg TeTOOg 000" STL-8LF-Z0T
LG0T 0SS TSL'9 79594 0S5 8FL'T 000068 SWTL TTnA — TToIA®RA 000" Z0L-8L¥-Z0Z
SOURUSIUTEN IAS]UTM - {.F 3d=0
07" €T L8 FBR LT Py 89522 ET"GE9’'E 00ogr’Lz SaDTAZSS DTFFRAL - S.7 3dad [RIOL
Ly LT IO T6% ‘6 LY 90F T 66°800°2 00°006°TT SIOIDRIUOD " IUTEH ¥ aTedsy Q00 0E6-5LF-202
000 00"5L5°2 0090 0070 00°6GLS'T sar1ddng soueusjurel ¥ Ivedsy 000" SLL-GLF-202
000 00 SIS 00790 000 00°G1S TTO 3 2ulioses 000 9¥%L-GL¥-207
09701 87 L0T €T L ZLTET 00" 02T SIBDTPRH 000 ZZL-SLF-20Z
000 00° 01§ 000 000 00 0TS uotjesuaduo) §,I93I0M 000 0ZL-SLF-20Z
06721 PROLLTZ IT°861T 96°7z¢ 00" 005’2 uoTsusd 000 8TIL-SL¥-E0F
000 00° 00 000 000 00002 87qT3oNPaJ SoUBRINSUT TO0 9TL-SLF-T0ZT
¥o°ET LO°6ST T 61°59T E6°0%E 00°005°2 PouURINSUT SITT/TRITASCH 000 9TL-GL¥-Z0%
98°0T 89°S¥¥ 06'0¢ ZETBG 00008 Kitanoeg TeIDOS 000 STL-SL¥-E0T
S¥¥T 6E°F0E’S ¥0°T0S 1%°668 00°00Z ‘9 swTL TINA - TIQIAEG 000 Z0L-SL¥—Z0Z
S90TAZRS DIFFRAL - §LF 3deq
90" £¢ CETSTZ 6T 06°98§ 89" LGL'S 00°EL6°FT SOUBRUSIUTEN SUTIN0Y - £9f adsg TeI0lL
L' CF GETLZL'G 000 59°zLe'y 00°00070T SICIDBAJUCD  JUTEH 3 ITeday 000 0E6-E9F-202
£F°8 PETE9TT 68 TTT 92" 66T 00°69€‘z2 gatTddng eoususjuler 3 aTedsd 000 GLL-E9F-E0Z
00°'0 00"60E 000 000 00" 60E ITO ¥ suUTTOSEY 000 9%L-E9¥%-202
9r'9 267911 8Z L 80°8 00°SET 3ITOTRIN 000" ZZL-€9¥%-202
00" 0 00°GES 000 00°0 00°SES uoTiesuaduo) s,I35I0M 000 02L-£9F%-20T
€67 7T £S5 TL8'T 00" 19T L¥"82¢ 00"00E°¢ uoTsURd 000 8BTL-£97~Z0C
0070 007012 000 00°0 00012 ATQIIONPaQ sdUBINSUL TOO'9TL-£9%-20%
05°ST 90°658°T 6T°G91 b6 0PE 00 oo’z spuRInSul SITI/TEITASOH 000" 9TL-£9F-20C
G579 £9°06F 90° 1€ LE"FE 00" 5z4 AjTanoeg [eIo0g 000" STIL-£97-Z0%
Z8"8 6V °926°S 80°0TS TS E€LG 00700579 Wiy {I0d - [[oTAed 000 20L-£9%-20¢
ODURBUDIUTER 2UTIN0Y - £9F 3dag
00°0 00°0p0 ‘20T 00°0 000 007000201 UOTAONIRSUOD - 6% 3deg Telol
0070 00" 000°'Z0T 0070 00°0 067000 20T SI0JOBAZUOD *JUTER ¥ Iredsy 000°0€6-TSF-C0Z
UOTADONIASUC) — T6F 1dog
spanlTpuadxy
£0°9T 8L°9LF'GST PLTTOR ST Z¢ EZ0'TE 007006 ‘98T SEOANHIART TYIOL
£9°9T BL°9LF 56T PLITOR ST ZZ EE0'1E 00" 005°98T 000 3deg TR104
£€9°9T 8L OLF'SET PLTTIOF ST ZTTETO'IE 00°005°928T T§ 39V — slueRIH 238315 000°9¥5-000-20C
000 3dea
SANUIADET
ANOd LEFELS ¥00¥H - z0g pund
asEsn (TYHMONEY) TYRMON (ISYTEDEA) HESYHHONI  (TVHMONGY) TYIRON 1E9dnd GHININY NOILATHOSHA HEGHAN 19
Ioad % FONYTYE £20C/TE/80 HINOW £Z0Z/TE/BO ¥Z-£202
ATITIIVAY H0d ALIAILOY TONYIYE TIX

Z1/5 isbegq

£Z0Z/TE/80 ONIANY dOI¥dEd

LNIWHDEYd 40 ALID 4904 LId90dEY HUNLIANHAXH dNY HOANHAWEY

JuswyoIed :14qd
sgg :1seq

Hd ¥1:¢0 £20¢/€1/60



T0 60T (p8 228 'pe) 0§°9%€’‘0T ¥8°500°81 (00" LTG'9T) SHYALIANTIXT 3 SENNTATY A0 LN
%9 79666 68T FZ'STIL’S 8L LIDET 00°LT0'EQT SMAALIANTART TYLOL
£9°9T BLT9LF'SST FLUIOV ST ZZ €20'1E 007005981 SHANIATE TYLOL
AHNNA LEIEILS JO0¥H - Z0Z pund
TF 5 797666 68T FZ°GIT’S BETLTOET 00°LTO'E0Z SHAALTANEAXE TYIOL
¥8°T 60°680'2¢ ¥6TT8T T6 P17 00°%06"22Z UOTIBIISTUTWRY - Z8F 1dsd Tel0L
go-o0 00°000‘0€ 00°¢ 00°0 00°000°02 PEOUISAD SATIRIISTUTUDY 000°0%6-28%-207Z
G791 £9°9T SE°T LE'E co-oc SIARDTPOR 0007 22L-C8¥-20¢C
oc o 00°ST 000 000 00°ST uoTjesuadnod s, ISHI0M 000" 0Z2L-28F-20¢
FAREAN T2 8¥%¥ 0£70€ 6L°T9 00°0TS ueTSuUSd 000°8TL-Z28F-20Z
000 00" 0% 00°0 00°0 00°0% 2TATIoNPa IDURINSUT T00"9TL-Z8F-202
SGTLT TL 9% FT1 6F 6Z°86 007095 2ouURANSUL 2FTI/[e3TdsScH 000°9TL~Z8F~20T
SZ"81 85" F9 8L°9 FA AN AN 00°6L AJTANDRS TETIDOS 000°STL-Z8F-20CZ
29781 96" ZF0 T LETGB F0"LEC 00°082°T SWTL TTnd — TToIA®g Q00 20L-¢caF-202
UoTIRIISTUTURY - Zg¢ 3deq
G121 ¥E"OTTET 9E"B8L9T 99 °'60Z°E 00" Q8% '92 eouBuUelUTEH ISjulM - 8.F 3ded TejlOg
saInyTpuadxy
aNOd ITIFYLS I00YH - Z0Z Pund
aqEsn (TYIIONEY) TYNION {ISVMEDHd) HSYIEONI  (TORONTY) TVHNON IA90Nd AAGNANY NOILAIHISHT JHIRNN T2
1908 % TDNYIVL £20Z/TE/80 HILNOH €E0Z/1E/80 FZ-£20Z
STIYIIVAY H0d ALIATIOY TONYIVE QLA

Z1/9

tabeg

LNHAHIEAYE 40 ALID d0d LA0dEd JFANIICNJddXH

€Z0Z/TE/80 DNIGNY aOTIA3

ANV IONIATH

Quawuy2ded dd
§§§ :ixesn
Ha $T:20 £202/€1/60



000 00'08T ‘9 000 000 0070819 3125 000 €4L-8LF-E0T
98 0¢ 61 CLL 18" LTIE 18 LTE 00°0E0°T TIO ® SUuT[osED 000 9FL-8LF-E£0T
9z LT LETBTT ST 1T €076 00" 6¥%T axenTpel 000 ZEL-BLF—EOZ
000 00629 000 000 00°6Z9 uoTjesuasduo) s,I34I0M 000 0ZL-8L¥-E0Z
0T %#T SET9LST g€° L0z G0 LT 00°000°€E uorsuad 000 8TL—-8LF-E0C
0070 00° 662 000 000 00652 STGTIONPaQ |OURINSUL T00 9TL-8LF-E£0C
g80°0¢ 65 LEE’'T FL TSE 1F°209 007 000°¢E soueaANSUT SITT/Te3vdsoH 000" 8TL-8LF-£02
17 LT G6 " LOS SLTLY G0 L0T 00519 Ajranoeg Teroes 000 STL-8LF-£0ZC
oL-oe B¥ OVL'9 LG 68L Z5°6GL°T 00°005°8 amTL TTnd - TToxAed 000" Z0L-8LF-£0T
SOURUDIUTER I83UTM - gLF 2d=qg
GE 8 10°0F¥% LT 0F"S%8 66°185°T 00 820 76T SOOTAXRE DTIIRIL - SL¥ ded Te3OL
0070 00819 00°0 00°0 00" 812 SI030BIJUOD TUTEH 3 ITedayg 000 0E6-SLF-£0T
00°0 00°0ST°S 000 00°0 00°0ST’S seTTddng eoususluUTEl 3 ITEdey 000 SLL-SLF-E0T
000 00°S18 0G0 00'0 00°STS TIo B 8UTTOSEY 000 9PL-SLF-E0T
916 ¥9-2CT 86°9 9¢'ZT 00°SET 2I18D TP 000" ZEL-SLF-E0T
80°0 00°065 000 00°'g 007066 ucTjesusduo) s,I2qICM 000 02L-SLP-E0T
L9°2T £Z7EBT’'T LZ 68T LL'9TE 00700672 uoTsURd 000 8TL-SLF-E0T
000 00 0%e g0 0 0070 00°0F2 aTqIionpag 20UBINSUT TO0 9TL-SLF-E0T
T£° €T 8T LIT T zETT9T ZLZEE 00°005°2 soueInsul SITT/TRITds0H 000 9TL-SLF-E0T
176 T0°L2S G662 66°CS 007088 A1TanDRg TRIS0S D00 STL-SLF-£0T
80" BT $879z8’°S 88 167¥ GT-EL8 00700279 swr TImd — [TRZARg 000°20L-GLF-E0T
SEOTAIRS DIFIRIL - GLF dad
BZ'9 997669 72 19 %48 FET959°T 00"9%E‘ee SDURUSIUTEH SUTINOd - £9F 3dsd TRICL
00°0 00°000°0T 000 000 00°000701 gIojoeajuc) " JuTel 3 avedsy 000 0E6-£9F-£0T
0070 00°205°¢ 000 000 00°2Z06°‘¢ gaTTddng 2ourusjuTel ¥ ATeday D00 SLL-E9F—-E0T
0070 00°60€ 0o-o 000 00°60€ ITO % 2UITOSR2D 000 9%L-£27-£0%
6678 96" TET LZ L PO"ET 00°SFT SIBOTPIH 000 ZZL-£9¥%-E0¢
0070 00° 529 000 000 00529 uoTiesuRduo) £,I9I0M 000 02L-£97-£08
£6°FT G5 TLB'T 6567091 5% 8ZE 0070022 uoTsULd 000 8TL-€97-£08
00°0 00552 000 000 00-5s¢ BTUTIONPSI VDURINSUT 100 9TL-€9%-£02T
0G°5T S0T6G8°T 6T 59T S6°0FE 0070022 SOUBRINSUI DFTL/TeITASOH Q00 9TL-£9F-£02
66°8 9z°¥95 GG TE PL*GS 00029 AxTanoosg TeTOOS 000 STL-€£9F-€£0T
ET 9T 78IRS IT 0TS 91" 816 0000579 sury TInd - TToxdARg 000" Z0L-£9F-£02
DOUBUDIUTER SUTINOY - £5%F adag
000 00 000’eT 000 0070 00°000°2T uctionilisuo)d - 15F 1dag 1ezol
0070 00°000°CT (]9 Rd0] 0070 00°000°2T "AJBE TENIORINUOD/TRUOTSS8I0I] 000 008-TS¥-£02
UOTIONIFSUCD - IGF 3deg
saIniTpusdxy
Z9°9T1 9B 59£°E9 69°00£'9 PT"FEQ 2T 007000 %L SHNNTATY TYLOL
29°971 98°69£°¢€9 69°00E‘9 PT 7E9 2T 00°000 9L 000 3d=a TEloL
Z9°9T 98 69 ‘o 69°00E7'9 FT FES 2T 00-000'9L 16 3I0¥ - siuein 21eilg 000" 2%5-000-€£02
poo adsg
SINIUBADY
aund LETELs TYI0T - £0Z pund
aasn (TYREONTY) TYIRON (ASYAUDEI) HASYHEONI  [TVIMONGY) TY¥HEON I9900d JEANIRE NOT1ATHI8Ia HAAHON TS
I950d g HONYIVE £202/1€/80 HLNOW €202/T£/80 FZ-£202
ATICIIYAY ¥0d ALIALLOV ADNYTIVEd LA

2T/ L

:abeg

ENHWHOEYd

£Z0Z/IE/80 HNTANI A0THRd

A0 ALID H04 LH0dWd HEOLIONEdXH

ONY HONHAHA

Jqueuwyoied :9dd
ggg 1I08N

Hd FT1:20 £208/€1/60



TS5°8T (§9°6520°¢g} AN A A §9°851°¢g {00°298'L2) SHYNIIGANTIXE 3 SEANIATT 10 TEN

0z L IS 16£ 796 §5°80Z% 6% SLY 'L 00°.98'€0T STUNLIANIIXE TYIOL
c9 91 98"599€ €9 69°00£°9 FTI°FEQ‘CT 00"000"9L SETONEATE TILOL
TONAT IEEWLS TY30T — £0Z pund

0z L TS T6E 96 SE°B0Z 'V 6% "GLF 'L 00" L98°E0T STINLIANIIXT TYLOL
6L"T TI°8TIL'CZ ¥6° 18T 68 FTIF 00°"€£T’E2 uoTiRISTUTURY - Z8F 3deg Tejod
0070 00700002 0070 000 00700002 PESUISAD SATIBIZSTUTURY 000°096-Z8¥—£0T
BF ET £9°1C SE°T LE"E 00762 2IBD TIPSR 000 2TL-287—E0T
0070 00°8T 00°0 000 00°8T uotiesusdwod £,I83I0MN 0007 0ZL-Z8¥-£0Z
59°6 1€°8LS 0E"0g 61T 00°0%9 UO TSR 0007 8TL-Z28%-£07
0070 £oTos 00"0 0070 00°0% ) 2TQTIONPaI BDUBRINSUT T0079TL-28F-£0C
FO"FT TL"T02 PT 6¥ 62" 86 00 00L souURINSUI SITT/TEITASOH 000°9T4-28%-£0C
A A AN 857468 8L°G [4 A0 A" Q0°00T A3TInosg TBISOS 000 STL-Z8F-E0C
T8 FT B6 C9E'T LETSH CO"LET 00°009°1 SWTL TINI - [[oxAed Q00" c0L-28F-€0C
- UCTIBRIZSTUTWPY - 28% 1daqQ

¥E'9T ELTEES'BT 09°20£°¢ LZ°918°C 00°0SE’€T SOURUSIUTRR ISIUTM - 8LF 3dad Te30f
00°00T (0% " T85) 0% - 189 07185 0070 saTTddng eourusiuTer 3 Itedsy 000" SLL-8LF-£0E
ssaniTpuadxy

dHNd LAEALS I¥V20T — £07 pung

qasn (TVIIONEY) TYRMON {ESYAUDHEd) HASYMEONT  (IVIMONIY) TVWE0ON LADAND AHANHTRY NOILATEOSHT YITHAN TD
1909 % HONYTYE £Z02/1£/80 HINOW £Z0Z/TE/80 vZ-£202
FTTEITCAT H0d ALIATIOV HONYIVE QLL
£202/1€/80 SNTANT QOIddd R e S
S55 taesn

Z1/8 :ebeg INAWHOYYd 40 ALTD ¥04 I¥904EY MMALIANAEXE ANY HONIATY Hd 7T:¢0 €202/E€T/60



1271 GL G55 '80€E (SLTOL'E) {(aL°10L'€E) 00" FS8 %0 SYNIIANIIXKE 3 SHANIATY J0 L3N

LS 1 SZ PEy1EC SLUTOL'E GLTTOL’E 00°9¥T GET SHANLIANAIXT TYLOL

Qoo 00°000°0¥%S 000 000 00000 “0%S SHANAAEY TYLOL

IuswdoTendpsy pTaTIUMOId - TSZ pung

LS°T ST BBV TEZ GLTI0LE SLUTOL'E 00T9%TGEC SHMNLIANAAXE TELOL

LS°T ST RRF LT SLTTIOL'E GLTOL'E 00°8¥1'S€2 000 2dsg TR0

00°0 0o ooo’Lzt 000 00°0 00°000'L2T pung IayYylo 03 ISTSUBRIL 000°'666-000-T5Z

0070 00" v8L’E 00°0 00°0 00°%8L°8 osuadxy 3sRI23UI 000°566-000-T4Z

00°0 00°Z9E’'6F 00"0 00°0 00"Z9€‘67% TedToutig-jusweITiay 3dqeq 000°'166-000~152

00°0 00°000 0% 000 00 0 007000 ‘0¥ PEIUISDAQ IATABITSTUTURY 000°0926-0006-152

ZO"LE 5Z 86279 GLTTIOL'E GL"TOL'E 00°000°0T TATSF TEN3IDBIJUCH/ TRUOTSS2I0IT 000°008-000-T5Z

000 3deq

garnyTpusadxg

00°0 00°00070%S Q00 000 00°000°0%G SEANAATE TELOL

00°0 00°000°0%G 000 g0°o 00°0D00°0FS 000 2dsQ TEl0L

-00°0 00000 “0¥%S 000 00°0 0000007 S anuassy ¥R 000" %0%-000-TSZT

000 3dea

Sonuanay]

JquawdoTeaspay pToTIUMOIg - [6Z PUng

agsn (TYIEONEY) TYHEON (ASYTI0HA) ASYAMONT  (TVWHONdY) TIVRWHON IE9ANd GHANANY NOILETADSAd YAGHAN T2
909 % HONYTYD £202/1£/80 HINOW £20Z/1E/80 FZ-£20Z

ATAVTIYAY 404 ALTATIOV AONYIVE dIX

Z1/6 tebeg

LNIWHDEYd 40 ALID 4904 Id0dEY HANLIANAdXE dNY EONHAWL

€Z0Z/TE/80 ONIANT dOTdAd

JusmyosIed 90
$GS 1xosN
Hd ?1:20 £20Z/€T1/60



A (00"¥EZ'0T) 00°FEZ 00" %£2 (00-000'0T) SHYNLTANTAXE ? SANNIATY 50 IANH

+IoRdv ¢0 000’0t 00°0 00°0 00" 000701 SHANLIANTAKE THLOL

00°00T (00" FET) 00" ¥Ee 00°%Ee 00°0 SHANIATY TELOL

ONNE TAEL - 6§62 pUNA

00°0 00-000°0T 0070 00°0 00°0000T SHEALIANAIXE TYIOL

00°0 00°000°0T 000 000 00700007 000 3deq Te3eld

00°0 00*006°0T 0070 0070 00T000°0T ENOUB[TOOSTH 000°556-000-667

000 adsq

ssangTpusdxy

00°00T {00 FEZ) [V A4 00" ¥EZ 0070 SHONIATY TYLOL

00°00T {(00°"FED) Q0 FET 00" pEZ 0070 pop adeg TEI0L

00°00T {(co vEZ) 00°FEZ 00" %€ 0070 STO3UBRTTT3D8TH 000°769-000-662

D00 3deg

ganuLADY

aNNd JFEL - 667 PUNd

adsn {(THHMONTY) 'TYHMON (ISVEIDEA) HSVAUDNI  (TVWMONEY) TVIEION LA90NE qIANERY NOTLATHISEA GEIHAN 19
L9 % TINY TV £c02/1€/80 HINOHW £20¢/TE/BO ¥Z-EZ0C

ATAVIIVAY ¥OI ALIAILOV AONYTYd OLK

Z1/01 :obea

€Z0Z/TE/80 DNIONT dCIMEd

LNIWHDEYd A0 ALID Y03 I¥M04dHY FUALTONEAXH ANV dONIATS

Jusmyosied :g9d
8§55 xesq

Wd FT:20 ETOZ/ET/60



00° 00T 88701k ‘0F (887961 1¢) (88" 0T¥“0E) 00°0 SHYAITANZA®T ¥ SANNIATY A0 IAN

TT e (0T ITH'E2) 0z 16T €€ 0T TITF ‘€€ 00000 0T SHUNLIONIAXE TYLOL

00-0¢ 89°666°9 TEF66T ZE 000t 007000 0T SHAANIATT FYELOL

PUNG TRTIOWSH §,UeAIq8A ~ [0 Ppung

TT'pEE (0Z°TTI¥ '€} 0Z 16T°€EE 0Z°TI%‘€E 00°000°0T STANLIANAIXT TYLIOL

T peEE (0Z°11%'c2) 0Z°"T6T’EE 02 TI% ‘€€ 00" 000°0T 000 1dad Telon

L0 LZE {00~ LoL"ze) 00°L8F‘ZE 00"LOL'ZE 00°000°0T ‘ATDS TEOIDEINUC)/TRUCTSS8I0Id 000 008-000-T0F%

D0T00T (02 FOL) 02 %0L 0z ¥0L 000 sat(ddng soueusjurel 3 xTedsy 000" §LL-000-TOF

poo 3dsa

seInlTpusdxy

00°0¢ 89 6669 ZETF6E'T zZetooo‘c 00000701 SHNNFEATY TYLOL

000t 89766679 ZEFE6T ZET000°E 00°000°0T 000 adsa TE3IOL

00'00T (00" 18T} 00°0 00" 18T 00" 0 STIOSUBRT =08 TH 000°¥69-000-TOF

6T 82 89°08T L ZET¥66°T ZE"6I8‘Z 007000707 snusasy Teirde) pPajngriluod 000" ¥L5-000-TOF

000 adeg

sSanuUaA3YT

PuUNg IeTJAOWSH S,UBI333SA — [0F PUNT

aasn (TYREONEY) TYHEON (ISYTEDHEA) ISYHYONI  (TYIRMONAY) TYHION IA9aNd JHINTHNY NOIIATHOSHO HAGHNN T9
Ioad % FONTIYL £Z02/1£/80 HINOW £Z0Z/TE/80 vZ-£20¢

HTEVTIYAY

CL/1T 1abeg

d0d ALTATLOY

HONVTIVY 41X

£Z02/TE/B80 ONIANT gqOIVdd

LNIWHDEYd 40 ALTD Y04 IH0ATd HUNLTANAAXA OGNV EANHANA

juswyored g
555 -4°8
Hd 7T:20 £€202/€1/60




T8°08T (06" TLF 'BSZ) (59°8LL79T) 06 TFE “8LS 00°0L8‘6TE STINIIANIIXE ¥ SHONIATE A0 LAN
8E 9T Z8°%08'981°2 ThTE9E 28T 81" FSE8CE 00'6GT'S19°E SqANA TI¥ - SHEALIANIAXT TVIOL
0€°FE 6 EEERTE T LLTPBS'SLT 80°969°900°T 00" 620'5E6 2 SANAA 1TV - STEONTATY TYIOL
67 ¥0T  {€5°618°C) £1.°G6L769 €5°600°'%% 00069715 SMINLTANAAXE 3 SEONIATI A0 LANM
££°6 €7°L09"8GZ + LETSTR'OT LG7209°92 00'otTE‘sse SHANLIANAIXH TYIOT
€6 €2 06°L8Z’'96%2 0T 219708 0T 218708 00°006'9¢L SHANFATT TYIOL
ANAE EMAS - 066 PUnA
£€°6 €k L0%'85¢ LET9TB'0T LS"Z09'9Z 00 Qiz’s8e SHYNLIANAIKT THIOL
£€°6 £F 2097852 LE'OTB 0T L6209 92 00°0%Z'58¢2 000 3d8q T304
000 007000701 00" 0 0070 0o 0000t asuRdxd 152183UT 000°566-000-065
0670 00°€2s %1 0070 00°0 00 ETS'PT roTleTosadadg 000°896-000-066G
0070 00000 0% 00°0 000 007000 70F PESYISAQ SATIBIISTUTURY 000°096-000-065
000 00 00E‘0T 00°0 000 007 00£°0T sIojovajUO) "UTEH 3 ITedoy 000 0£6-000-06S
L1792 YOTBVLT 0% LOF 96°61% 00rgocz SOTATITIN 000 0E6-000-065
0S76L Litigz'e £2°262°¢C £2°08%°s 00 8TI60T SpuUog 3 SOURINEUT 000 0T6-000-065
00°0 00°5TS 0070 0070 00°G1S TEelUSY WICITUL Q000 818-000-085
$9°L SETTPS ‘8ET SET88F v G8-85F'IT 00000 05T TATSF TENISRIUO)/TRUCTESDIoAd 000" 008-000-065
89°€T1 6L L6T 80°02 12°L¥ 00" GFE SITLDTPRH 000 ZZL—-000-0865
000 00 s9s 000 0070 00°GFS ucTiesusdwo) s,ISNI0N 000 0ZL-000-065G
9585 GETTE5’S 80°5FF 19806 0070066 ucTsUSg 000" 8TL-000-065
0070 00°00L 000 000 00°00L 27gqI1onpad SoURINSUL T00 9TL~000-06%
09°€T 16°965'8 98° %59 £0TESE’T 00705676 2DURINSUY ©ITI/Te3TdsOH 000°9TL—-000-065
LG TIT 80°CFST 28768 Z6°T0ZT 00" S¥L T AjTanoag Terses 000 STL-000-06S
00°FT F0"L9% 02 SO TEF'T 96-zEE’e 00 008‘¢e SWTL TTnd - [rofhed 000" Z0L~000-06%
000 23deg
S3ANI Tpusdxy
£6° €T 061827952 0121908 0T 21908 00006 ‘9¢€ SEANAATI TYIOL
£6°€T 06°.8Z'95¢ 0T 21908 01219708 007006 ‘9¢€€ 000 3dsg Te30%
0o o 00'006°T 00°0 000 00°006°T S3USWISBAUL UO 352A33UT 000°#239-000-065
9092 06°L82'%G2Z 0T 2t2 08 oT"ZT2’08 00000 °'sEE S2DTAISG Tamag 000 °929-000-06%
000 2adsqg
senuanay
QNOA ¥IMAS - (065 pung
adasn (TYIIONTY) TVREON (dSYEIDEd) |SYTIONI (TWHMONGY) TYH40ON LUDANE CHINANY NOIIATIDSHEA EIEHON O
1909 % AONYTEL £Z0Z/1€/80 HINOH €208/ 1E/80 7Z2-€£202
ATAVTIVAY HOd ARIATLOV AONYTIYd OLA

Z1/21T

iabeg

£C0C/TE/B0 DNIANA dOIYd™d

LNAHHDEYd A0 ALID ¥0d I¥04dHY HUALIANEAXT ANV dONIATS

JqueuysIed ddq
885 ass)

Wd ¥1:20 £202/E1/60



000 00'00T (IS €E€S’TE) {8z ce0’cz) IS EES'IE 00°0 STYNLIANAGKT % SHONIATT A0 IAN
00°559 759 PE 00T (IF°GLZ) 82 G5T°€T 1v°528°'08 a0 055708 SHEALIANIAXE TYIOL
0355969 6F6ET (267808 71E} 00°ZET TE BSLETT 007055408 SEANIATS TEIOL
TTYAILSEA YAWWNS HASURGIIANTA - 0SZ Pund
00°952'59 FET 00T (T¥"GLZ) 8Z°GS1'¢€C T¥"528°08 00°0G5708 SAUNLIANIIXT TYIOL
00°552G9 PET00T (1%°6L2) 82 G61'¢€e T¥ 52808 007055708 000 3daQ TEIOL
00° 6987’5 000 0000’9 00°0 000 00°000°9 AjroTrang 0€0°6LL-000-052
00" 0 9970071  (¥6°F) 00°0 ¥6"¥SL 00°0SL sosuadxy mcys Ied 2T0°6LL-000-052
0070 00'00T  ($G°LG) FSTLS G LG D00 soguadxy =beag STO 6LL-000-052
00°0SL'81 S¥ HL 0070599 00°052°S 00 QGG €T 00°00Z'8T juswutelaajuy =2be3s €T 6LL-000-052
00 0%5 %1 80 E0T  (SE€° %25} PLG9L7TT GETFZS LT 00°000°LT UOTIBIYSTUTWPY - TBATISSI ZI0 ' 6LL-000-062
000 8t 'B6E  (S0°0F0’TT) 000 SO 0FL YT 00°00L°E soueg-burstey pung 800°6LL-000-08Z
00°0E0°T 0o 00T (00-0ZL°T) 000 00°02L'T 00°0 slu=ad Aeg 31sa4 LO0'6LL-000-052
00"008°T L7709 S6°129 S0TEGZ 50'8LZ T 00°006°T BOIY SUSIPTIYI-ABJ "3534 G600 6LL-000-D52
00 0LT ¥6°9% 219071 88°'€6 88°¢6 007002 s3Jexd 3 §3A¥ - Aeg -1Ee84d F00°6LL-000-052
00 00S'¥ Y2 FB CETPZO'T L9 G587 LG SLY'S 0000879 ATEM/20RY — AeQ TRATISSI €00°6LL-000-082
00 000 ‘6T 9P L6 LDTE99 00°08€ £6°0£9 ‘G2 00°00£ 92 ssuadrg 9OURILIOFISg 100 6LL-000-052
000 3dea
saanlTpusdsyg
00°559 59 67 6ET (Z6°808°1C) 00°CET Z6°BSE€ZTIT 007055708 SHANTATT TELOL
00°559°s9 6F'6ET  (Z67808°'1F) 00°2ET Z6 85€'TTT 0005508 000 3dag TE3OL
00°G6F‘€E S6°229 (6276LT°1T) 00°0 62°622°ST 00°0S0°% STIOSURT [0S TH 000" ¥69-000-05%
0070911 0£'02 T9°08T°S 00°0 GETBTE’T 00°005°9 quaan ferosds ASYM Z00°5L9-000-052
00°000°2 EE"T0EZ  (05°98579) 0070 05 980°CT 00°00s 9 butsTRy pung T00°6L9-000-0GZ
0070 00°0 00°000°G 000 000 00°000's cuyoldn eo0eIn 3 PTOIRH-SiUeT) 007 0685-000-052
00°000‘08 L979TT  (00°000°S) 000 00 000 °SE 00°000°0¢ ‘pUNOd SACWUTIH § BUTATZI-shuRIg 100 065-000-05%Z
00°000°€ 600 000 000 000 00°0 TEDQT-S3URID 000 065-000-0GZ
007000791 18°L2T {(00°0S7 %) 0o°o 007 05% 02 00°000‘ST sdrysiosuods 23exodao) 500" SLF-000-082
00 006°T 6Z°LEE  (PRTGEL'E) 00 ZET FETCRL'O 0070002 saTIg pund drysIsquspy £00°5L%-000-052
00°000°s ZETFS 0F 6962 000 09°0887¢ 00006 ‘2 so84 J[em/e0®y Z00°SL5-000-052
00 00T’€E €6 ¥LT (D€ L66°E) 00°0 0£°LBE ‘T 00" 000’'T S1FRID 3 $3IY 100" SLy-000-0ST
. 000 3deq
S/NUDADYT
TYATLSHA dAHWNG TAOMIIITANIE - 0§Z pUng
LI9ang agsn (IMONGY) WHON {¥0da) ¥ONT {IONIY) FION LADANY TIANERY NOILAI¥DSHEd HEIHON 19
TYNISTIO ead % FONWIVE €Z/T£/80 HINOH £Z0T/TE/ 80 £20Z
ATIITYAY ¥0d ALIATILIOV HINYTYE dIA
£Z0Z/T£/80 ONIANT aoIddd Fuswysded  idd
mmm tIss]
/T rabeg LNUWHDYUYE A0 ALID d04d I¥MOdHEY HEdALIONAIXHd dNY AONIATT Wd ST:Z0 £€Z0T/€1/60



Kindleberger Park Reservation Form

é Sunken Garden/Gazebo ($350 non-resident/$250 resident) (3 hour biock)
Includes $100 refundable deposit :

Stage (3450 non-resident/$300 resident) (3 hour block) Includes $100 depaosit

___ Picnic Pavilion 1 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident)
___ Picnic Pavilion 2 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident)
— Picnic Pavilion 3 Upper (100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
____ Picnic Pavilion 4 Lower ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
____ Picnic Pavilion 5 Lower ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)

Name: AYWW{Q ‘lf\//ﬁd’éf'C‘C - Phone:SWfl7q?
Address: L\;:l] \ K\U‘QY\/(QW\W UCZO’O(/
Email: QA %Yffdﬁl"\d: @5 ¢ ama ' .COY) Alternate Phone:
Date of Event: _ 4~ 50‘?93 U‘ | Timef };‘ q{/’m
it Winocal s elin

Approximate number of attendees: _ %O

—

4 hour block)
4 hour block)

pr— —— p——

Type of event; o7 K

Will there be music as part of your event?

Name of DJ, musical performer, sound technician: | Y)ﬁ

Decorations, rental chairs/tents/tables? Describe: (m\f?lfﬁd (’m S ; (H[’U‘}O}/
Name & address for deposit return; C/';’@? OMZ‘:V(

on Jhai G gB  rEcEIVED
Signature  { o -
This reservation form is your receipt, confirming your reserved area. Should you sep 11 2073

experience any problem during your event, please contact the Kalamazoo

Township Police Department at 269-488-8911. o g, HORE P
FOR INTERNAL OFFICE USE:,  ~ 77 = "=or————-
Application received by: Eb Date: Qfo-_ = T
Payment amount received: C‘? QSCD ' Receipt #
Check # Cash Credit ¥
APPROVAL

Signature Date



KABAM

g K Sl e © 2023 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

COMSTOCK

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 61| 3 75,496
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 3 6,201
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL $ 4,972
COMSTOCK PLUMBING $ 6,803
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION $ 400

SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER

165

KALAMAZOO BUILDING 23143 4,004
KALAMAZOD ELECTRICAL 15 1 4 2,212 |
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 3714 3,624
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 201 ¢ 2,238
_KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 813 730
KALAMAZQO SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER
PARCHMENT BUILDING 13 -
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 21 ¢ 225
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 414 566
PARCHMENT PLUMBING -13 -
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION i1 100

PINE GROVE BUILDING 614 3,003
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 713 1,152
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 814 1,420
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 213 453
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -13 .
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER 4
RICHLAND BUILDING §
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 161 % 3,404
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 271 $ 5,116
RICHLAND PLUMBING 41 ¢ 993
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 3 -
HICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 3
RICHLAND VILLAGE BUILDING 2] s 352
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL -1 § -
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 2] % 401
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING -1 3 -
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -14 -

_RICHLAND VILLAGE
. TOTALRI

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER

- AUGUST 2022 ]

o PREV YEAR MONT
282.0%

AUGUST 2022

161"}0




23 MONTHL R Y SDICTION

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 263 $ 273,032
COMSTOCK FLECTRICAL 190 $ 41,479
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 183 § 34,740
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 148 $ 29,183
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURTSDICTION i4 $ 1,430

_COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 2

KALAMAZOO BUTIDING 95 H 38,018
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 109 [ 15,359
KALAMAZOD MECHANICAL 208 $ 31,105
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 74 $ 9,476
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 40 5 3,650

KALAMAZOO

PARCHMENT

SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER
T

BUTEDING $
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL $ 1251
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL $ 2,194
PARCHMENT PLUMBING $ 501
PARCHMENT SPECTAL - JURTSDIGTION $ 400

"~ PINE GROVE _

R’SCHLAND VILLAGE

BUTLDING 31 3 17,883
PINE Gf GROVE ELECTRICAL 35 [ 6,164
PINE GE GROVE MECHANICAL 34 5383
PINE GROVE IMBING 11 2,614
PINE GROVE SPECIAL JURISDICTION 1 ] 100
PINE GROVE 1
L GROV L 43
RICHLAND BUILDING 80 3 55,606
RICHLAND ELECERICAL 112 21,734
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 42 24,112
RICHLAND PLUMBING 6 13.043
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURTSDICTION 3 $ 350
]

“BUILDING

RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL
__RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL

RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING

RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION

_ RICHDILLAGE

YTD - AUGUST 2022

SPECIAL HOMEOWNER :

% 2022 - YTD

.'534,365.50 |

120.2%

% 2073 - “v*rn

0 9023 YD

BUDGET

1.49%

Ytb - AUGUST 2022
LAY - 111.8%
2023 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE TOTALS

# PERAMITS REVENUE
i50 | § 48,411 JAN
142 | 4 34,908 FEB
276 | § 144,116 MAR
HHiTs 59,779 APR
302 | & 88,902 MAY
285 | $ £6,066 JUN
360 | & 139,273 JUL
360 [ ¢ 139,273 AUG
% - SEP
- 5 - 0CT
g . NOV
s - DEC

086 | § 739,218




18enbayy
uonoIpstnf = Alogerey s

GNV

{(294) TTOH = SmEIgmng
ANV 81

= mﬁswﬂb.wwwdﬁﬂp“ﬂogu>o@
ANV g

[epadg — sdArnms sy
sprooay v ‘wonemdog

00°00T$ N $I3] [BI0 ], T ISIAUIdJ (810 T,
£T0T/91/80 paaidumoy onoadsuy soveuRurey A rdorg
yuawngoz ] wogy isanba souevmurepy frodord  mondmosaq oM
00001 £C0T/Y1/80 DOSSV NI TTIN DAH 080-92¢-20-90 719 DVINAVH 05+ 6POBT-ETSd

A TEI0T, 23] My Ne I0IENUOTY WMD) IBQEINN] [20TeT ssarppy qof £ IO

¢€Z0T/1€/80 .\wﬁ\w:?_méo_




KALAMAZOO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY POLICY COMMITTEE

CALLTO ORDER

Minutes of the May 31, 2023 Meeting

The May 31, 2023 Policy Committee Meeting was called to order at 9: 05 a.m. at Metro in
Kalamazoo, by Chairperson Thompson.

INTRODUCTIONS

Introductions were made by all present.

ROLL CALL

Meeting attendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet.

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING

Curt Aardema
Rob Britigan
Marsha Drouin
-Jeff Franklin

Tim Frisbie

Jeff Heppler
Joanna lohnson
Lisa Imus

Greg Kinney

Judy Lemon

Pat McGinnis
Sherine Miller
Pete Pfeiffer

Chris Praedel
Aditya Rama

Jeff Serensen

Paul Sotherland
Randy Thompson, Chair
Jerry VanderRoest

MEMBERS ABSENT

John Gisler
Robert Henderson
Tracey Locey

Don Ulsh

OTHERS PARTICIPATING
Sean McBride

Central County Transportation Authority
City of Parchment

Richland Township

Michigan Department of Transportation, Planning
Village of Vicksburg

Village of Augusta

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County
Village of Lawton

Van Buren County Road Commission

City of Galesburg

City of Portage

Kalamazoo Township

Michigan Department of Transportation, TSC
City of Kalamazoo

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
Cooper Township

KATS Citizens’ Advisory Committee
Comstock Township

Charleston Township

Kalamazoo County

Van Buren Public Transit
Brady Township
Schoolcraft Township

Metro

PC Minutes 5/31/23 Page 1 of 5



Megan Mickelson
Elizabeth Rumick
Jon Start

Steve Stepek
Trevor TenBrink
Ali Townsend
Bret Witkowski

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Citizen

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

~ District Director for Congressman Huizenga

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Van Buren County Road Commission

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TQ THE AGENDA

There were no changes or additions to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Johnson moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the agenda of the May 31, 2023
Policy Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments were made,

CONSENT AGENDA

-ACCEPTANCE CF THE TREASURER REPORT

-ACCEPTANCE CF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE REPORT

-ACCEPTANCE OF THE SOUTHCENTRAL MICHIGAN PLANNING COUNCIL REPORT
-APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE APRIL 26, 2023 MEETING

lohnson moved, and it was duly seconded by Miller, “to accept and approve the items on the

Consent Agenda.” MOTION CARRIED.

FY 2023 - 2026 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENTS

Referring to the Transportation Improvement Program Amendment included in the meeting packet,
Stepek explained it is a Kalamazoo County Douglas Avenue project for an increase in local cost of

$370,000.

Heppler moved, and it was duly seconded by Franklin, “to approve the FY 2023 — 2026
Transportation Improvement Program Amendment.” MOTION CARRIED.

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION MIASTER AGREEMENT

Stepek explained the included document is the operating agreement between Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study (KATS} and the Michigan Department of Transportation {MDOT). It is being
presented for renewal for another 3-year term of October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2026. Both
parties have worked well together and wish to continue the arrangement for KATS to complete the
legislative requirement of MDOT funding allocations, It is functionally unchanged from the last
contract. KATS is presenting the document for a recommendation of approval and to allow the
Policy Committee Chairperson to sign on KATS behalf.

PC Minutes 5/31/23 Page 2 of 5



Johnson moved, and it was duly seconded by Drouin, “to approve Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study’s Michigan Department of Transportation Master Agreement and
allow Chairperson Thompson to sign on KATS behalf.,” MOTION CARRIED.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ANNUAL REVIEW

Sorensen reported the Finance and Personnel Subcommittee met with Executive Director Stepek for
the annual review. After discussions on performance, and review of the rate of inflation, the
Subcommittee recommends a 6 percent rate increase beginning with the Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study (KATS) new fiscal year on October 1, 2023. Sorensen reported that collection
and consideration of feedback from all parties that work with Stepek will now be conducted
biannually as opposed to annually. Stepek elaborated that not only was the process laborious, but
there were also participation issues. The review style has been revised from assigning a number on a
scale of 1 to 10, to more of a 360-degree review.

Johnson moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve KATS Executive Director
Stepek’s review and & percent rate increase effective October 1, 2023.” MOTION CARRIED.

LEGISLATIVE DISCUSSION: TREVOR TENBRINK DISTRICT DIRECTOR FOR CONGRESSMAN BiLL HUIZENGA

Stepek introduced and welcomed Trevor TenBrink, District Director for Congressman Huizenga. As
requested at a previous meeting, an invitation was extended to the new Congressman’s office to
attend and speak at a meeting. TenBrink explained Huizenga’s district boundary extends from
Northern Ottawa County south to Berrien County, including Allegan and Van Buren Counties, and
portions of Kalamazoo and Calhoun Counties. In addition to Huizenga’s district office in Holland, one
is planned for Portage. TenBrink assured attendees funding for projects would not be rescinded.
TenBrink fielded questions and comments from attendees.

CONTRIBUTED SERVICE UPDATE

Stepek explained a summary of the fiscal year-to-date contributed services for the fiscal year-to-
date April 30, 2023 is included in the packet for your review.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Aardema introduced Aditya Rama as the new Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority (KCTA)
representative for Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) Policy Committee. Rama was
welcomed, A legislative breakfast was held in mid-May. It was well attended by Kalamazoo County
representatives, and TenBrink came also. Information on Metro was discussed along with a tour of
Metro facilities. The Central County Transportation Authority (CCTA} / KCTA board is working to
obtain a new security services provider for the Kalamazoo Transit Center. A contract should be
finalized at the next board meeting. Plans are underway to roll out new processes to the Metro bus
system resulting from the Comprehensive Qperational Analysis. McBride elaborated on the
importance of having a successful security guard contract for the Transit Center which is used by
millions of pecple a year. Metro’s previous partnerships for security with the City of Kalamazoo and
Kalamazoo County were withdrawn due to staffing shortages. Metro would welcome the opportunity
to reenter into a contract with law enforcement but in the meantime will be contracting with
security firms.

PC Minutes 5/31/23 Page3 of 5



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Stepek stated Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) is working with a consultant to update
our website. KATS received notification that we will be going through a Certification Review in
November. As previously discussed, KATS s still waiting for our final allocations for funding. Both the
new census results and Michigan’s noncompliance with Federal Highway Administration repeat
drunk driving sentencing minimums will impact allocations. Once funding is determined, KATS
Transportation Improvement Program Subcommittee will meet to determine where to shift projects
to align with the new allocation. In response to Johnson’s inquiry, Stepek responded that the
National Functional Classification update process cannot begin until KATS receives its official urban
area.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was brought forth.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens’ comments were made.
MEMBER COMMENTS

VanderRoest of Charleston Township reported the M-96 Michigan Department of Transportation
project is complete. VanderRoest is very pleased and appreciative with the result.

Pfeiffer provided the Michigan Department of Transportation update. The completed M-96 project
includes use of @ newer technology on rumble strips called sinusoidal rumble strips. These strips offer
the same vibrating safety benefit for drivers but have lesser external noise for residence when
vehicles travel across them. The US-131 project from Schoolcraft to Three Rivers is underway. A large
I-24 project in Berrien County, and M-89/M-343 prajects will be let on Friday. The M-40 project
between Lawton and Paw Paw will begin next week.

Heppler reported the Village of Augusta water project will start after July 4, 2023. The Village of
Augusta will work with the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County on chip seal projects over the
summer. Plans are underway for next year’s bridge project. On behalf of Kalamazoo County, Heppler
said a downtown Kalamazoo Event Center arena will be built next to the new courthouse,

McGinnis reported Portage Road and Shaver Road projects in the City of Portage are underway. The
city is researching additional locations to install electric vehicle charging stations. The city applied for
federal funding to improve its electric vehicle infrastructure.

Britigan reported City of Parchment focal road projects are complete.

Sorensen invited attendees to the Kalamazoo County Chapter of the Michigan Township Association
annual golf outing on fune 23, 2023. The Cooper Township Hall remodeling project will begin next
week and is expected to last through February of 2024, The main entrance will be moved to the rear
and recently acquired adjacent property will be turned into a much-needed parking lot.

Johnson of the Road Commission of Kalamazoe County (RCKC) reported Sprinkle Road remains closed
for railroad work. Once this railroad work is completed this week, railroad work on N Avenue will
follow. The Lake Street project is underway. Use the Olmstead entrance to access the Kalamazoo
County Expo Center. RCKC has 185 projects planned. An experimental scrap tire project for the local

PC Minutes 5/31/23 Page 4 of 5




road system will occur this month. Johnson thanked Townships for partnering with them for the
project. RCKC participated in and was complementary of the recent Michigan Township Association
conference. RCKC is developing a Safety Action Plan. Attendees and everyone in the public is
encouraged to participate in the Safety Action Plan survey available on the RCKC website through
July 15, 2023. Feedback is appreciated. Comments will be used to develop a Safe Streets for All Plan
which will be used to apply for federal funding. Progress continues on the new RCKC facility. Move-in
{s expected next summer, Tours are available during the construction with anticipated Open Houses
in 2024. The Transportation Asset Management Council updated its Unified Planning Work Program.
The RCKC annual report is out. RCKC is hiring.

Frisbie invited attendees to the Village of Vicksburg 42™ Annual Old Car Festival June 10, 2023. The
Burg Days of Summer Program will be held every Wednesday beginning June 14, 2023 through
August 14, 2023 from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. The program includes live music and several activities
for families.

Lemon reported the City of Galeshurg infrastructure project on Washington and Division is
underway.

Imus reported the Village of Lawton is gearing up and excited for the M-40 project.

Thompson reported the Comstock Township water project in the area of 33" Street and M-96 is over
half done. The new Comstock Township building should be done by the end of the month with move-
in anticipated in August.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Chairperson Thompson adjourned the meeting at 9:58 a.m.

The next meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study Policy Committee will be held on
Wednesday, June 28 or Aug 30, 2023 at 8:00 a.m.

Approved 8/30/23 {er)

PC Minutes 5/31/23 Page S of 5



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE KINDLEBERGER ARTS COMMISSION HELD ON MONDAY,
JUNE 12, 2023

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Jon Heasley at 5:00 PM,

2. Roll Call

Present: City Manager Nancy Stoddard, Caroline Garber, Jon Heasley, Nancy Eaton, Kris Jordan, Julie
Heasley, Mayor Rob Britigan

Absent: Rokin Madaras

A motion was made by City Manager Nancy Stoddard, supported by Caroline Garber, to excuse the
absence of Robin Madaras.

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion carried.

3. Approval of the Minutes from

A motion was made by Mayor Britigan, supported by Nancy Eaton to approve the minutes from the
meeting on May 1%, 2023,

Ayes: Nancy Eaton, Caroline Garber, Jon Heasley, Julie Heasley, Mavyor Britigan

Abstain: City Manager Stoddard

Nays: None

Mgation carried.

4. Old Business

A. Fundraising Update

Jon updated the KAC, reporting that Seelye is not a $1000 sponsor this year. Jon also reported that the
KAC fundraising budget number has been exceeded.

5. New Business
A. Director’s Report
Kris Jordan presented her Director’s report.

Theatre: Kris reported that rehearsals have begun. The script of the youth play has been adjusted to
eliminate a love interest stary line. Conner has requested a third changing tent for the actors that do not
identify as male or female, The department of public works will be constructing the runway that was
requested for the Grease show,

Publicity: Kris will be meeting with loan later this week to discuss the fold-out that is pianned for the
Festival. Mailers need to be distributed. Iulie volunteered te do the Gull Road run. Mayor Britigan
volunteered to give out at KATS policy committee. Kris is in the process of creating lists of posts for Betsy
Eaton for social media.

Children’s Area: The children’s area chairpersans are looking for two more volunteers for the dunk tank.
Car Show: The dash plaques are ready. Electrical with an extension cord has been arranged.

Arts and Crafts Show: Nancy Eaton reported that she has 135 attendees. She has closed registration for
the Arts and Crafts show. The football coach will be letting Nancy Eaton know soon how many volunteers

he will have for the craft show set-up assistance.

Food Vendors: Nancy presented her list of food vendars far the summer. This is Nancy’s last year !
organizing food vendars. For Festival 2024, the KAC will need a new volunteer. !



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE KINDLEBERGER ARTS COMMISSION HELD ON MONDAY,
JUNE 12, 2023 — Page 2

Cornhole Tournament: DeAnna is looking for more financial support for the tournament. Seelye is no
ionger sponsering the tournament.

5K Run/Walk: Caroline reported that registration will stay open until the morning of the Festival. Caroline
and Micki will be working on marketing the race.

Parade: Kris reported that there are 21 entries thus far. The Parchment Band is participating.

Concerts: Denise Davis and the Motor City Sensations were well received. Comments on social media
indicate that the community would like them to return. Egg Media is very happy with the new speakers.
Diego, Derek’s son, is interning with Egg Media and will be helping this summer,

Budget: Kris indicated that the library bathrooms will not be available as the library will be closed on
Festival day. More porta potties will be needed at an extra expense. Joan VanSickler sent an invoice that
is outside of the boundaries of her cantract by $375. The speaker installation was $1620. The new

microphones for the play will be $400. An additional golf cart is also requested.

Sock Hop: Kris estimates the building fee at $600. Matt will charge 5300. Decorations will be another
cost. 6:30 start time.

6. Member Comments

Mayor Britigan: No comment

Nancy Eaton: No comment.

Caroline Garber: No comment.

lulie Heasley: Julie will check into golf carts for the Festival. Julie suggested that on Tuesday, September
12* the KAC should meet at FOP and Jon and Julie will buy pizza. All chairpersons will be invited for a
debrief.

Nancy Stoddard: No comment.

Jon Heasley: Jon will offer one of the curtain speeches te Kristen at the Art’s Council.

Jon Heasley: Jon indicated that the KAC has done good work, and he is looking forward to the Festival.

Kris Jordan: Kris indicated that this is her last year as Festival Director. She advocates for the sound fees
for Egg Media to be increased in 2024.

7. Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the KAC, Julie Heasley made a motion to adjourn the
meeting. This motion was supported by Mayor Britigan. The meeting was adjourned at 6:56 PM.

8. Next Meeting .
The next meeting of the Kindleberger Arts Commission will be held on Monday, August 14t at 6:00 PM.



MEMORANDUM

To: Mayaor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Nancy R Stoddard, Parchment City Manager

Date: September 5, 2023

Re: Water Tower Painting

Background: Asyou know, the water tower was sold to the City of Kalamazoo when the Parchment
Water System was sold.

Discussion: James Baker, Director of Public Services spoke with the Mayor and the City Manager about
the necessity to paint the former Parchment Water Tower in 2024. He stated that the City Commission
members could decide what colors that they would like to have on the tower (any color) and its lettering
{black or white). Currently, it is green with white lettering but the use of the school colors {(maroon and
white) or some other colors could be used instead.

Recommendation: ‘
Motion to approve the following colors for the painting of the Water Tower; far
the tower and for the lettering on the Water Tower.




ORDINANCE NO. _

AN  ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS AND
EXTENSIONS TO THE SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF
PARCHMENT; TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
REVENUE BONDS TO PAY A PORTION OF THE COST THEREOF; TO
PRESCRIBE THE FORM OF THE BONDS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE
COLLECTION OF REVENUES FROM THE SYSTEM SUFFICIENT FOR
THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COST OF THE OPERATION AND
MAINTENANCE OF THE SYSTEM AND PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF
AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS; TO PROVIDE AN ADEQUATE
RESERVE ACCOUNT FOR THE BONDS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE
SEGREGATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE SYSTEM’S REVENUES; TO
PROVIDE FOR THE RIGHTS OF THE HOLDERS OF THE BONDS AND
ENFORCEMENT THEREOF; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER MATTERS
RELATING TO THE BONDS AND THE SYSTEM.

THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PARCHMENT HEREBY ORDAINS:
Section 1. Definitions. The following words and terms used in this Ordinance shall

have the meanings assigned in the preamble to this Ordinance and in this Section, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise.

The word “acquired,” as used in this Ordinance, shall be construed to include acquisition
by purchase, construction or by any other method.

“Act 94” shall mean Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as amended.

“Authorized Officer” shall mean the Issuer’s Mayor, Vice Mayor, City Treasurer, City
Clerk, City Manager, or a designee thereof.

“Bond” or “Bonds” shall mean the Issuer’s 2023 Sewage Collection System Revenue
Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000),
authorized to be issued pursuant to this Ordinance, together with any additional bonds of equal
standing hereafter issued,

“Department of Treasury” shall mean the Department of Treasury of the State of
Michigan.

“Engineer” shall mean Prein & Newhof, Inc.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the fiscal year of the Issuer and the operating year of the
System, commencing July 1 and ending June 30 of the subsequent year, as such fiscal year may
be changed by the Issuer from time to time.

1




“Government” shall mean the government of the United States of America, acting
through the United States Department of Agriculture, or any agency thereof.

“Issuer” or “City” shall mean the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County, Michigan.

“Ordinance” shall mean this Ordinance and any ordinance or resolution of the Issuer
amendatory or supplemental to this Ordinance, including ordinances or resolutions authorizing
the issuance of additional bonds.

“Project” shall mean the acquisition and construction of improvements and extensions to
the City’s sewage collection system, including, but not limited to, acquiring related equipment,
improvements and appurtenances, and the acquisition of any necessary easements, rights in land.

“Public Improvements” shall mean the Project and any other public improvements, as
defined in Section 3 of Act 94, which are authorized to be acquired and constructed under the
provisions of this Ordinance.

“Reserve Amount” shall mean with respect to the Bonds the lesser of: (1) the maximum
annual debt service due on the Bonds in the current or any future year; (2) 125% of the average
annual debt service on the Bonds; (3) 10% of the principal amount of the Bonds on the date of
issuance of the Bonds; or (4) the reserve amounts required to be set aside pursuant to Section 14
of this ordinance.

“Revenues” and “Net Revenues” shall mean the revenues and net revenues of the Issuer
derived from the operation of the System and shall be construed as defined in Section 3 of Act
94, including with respect to “Revenues”, the earnings derived from the investment of moneys in
the various funds and accounts established by this Ordinance.

“System” shall mean the Issuer’s Sewage Collection System, including such facilities
thereof as are now existing, acquired and constructed as the Project, and all enlargements,
extensions, repairs and improvements thereto hereafter made.

“Transfer Agent” shall mean the transfer agent and bond registrar for each series of bonds
as appointed from time to time by the Issuer as provided in Seetion 5 of this Ordinance and who
or which shall carry out the duties and responsibilities as set forth in Section 5 and Section 6 of
this Ordinance.

Section 2. Necessity: Approval of Plans and Specifications. It is hereby determined to
be a necessary public purpose of the Issuer to create, establish, and improve the System and to
acquire and construct the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications prepared by the
Issuer’s Engineer and on file with the Issuer, which plans and specifications are hereby
approved, and the System is hereby created and established.




Section 3. Costs; Useful Life. The total cost of the Project is estimated to be
approximately Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000), including the payment of incidental and/or
issuance expenses as specified in Section 4 of this Ordinance, which estimate of cost is hereby
approved and confirmed, and the period of usefulness of the Project is estimated to be not less
than forty (40) years. Project costs not financed through the issuance of the Bonds shall be paid
for using available funds of the Issuer and, as applicable, contributions from the Michigan
Department of Transportation.

Section 4. Payment of Costs; Bonds Authorized. To pay a portion of the cost of
acquiring and constructing the Project and the legal, engineering, financial and other expenses
incidental to said acquisition and construction, and expenses incidental to the issuance and sale
of the Bonds, it is hereby determined that the Issuer shall borrow the sum of not to exceed Four
Million Dollars (84,000,000), and that revenue bonds be issued therefor pursuant to the
provisions of Act 94.

Section 5. Bond Details. The Bonds shall be designated SEWAGE COLLECTION
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS, including an applicable designation recognizing the year in
which the Bonds are issued and/or the series of the Bonds, shall be dated as of the date of
delivery of the first installment, shall consist of one (1) fully-registered nonconvertible bond per
series in the denomination of not to exceed Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000); shall be issued in
denominations of $1,000, or integral multiples thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates to be
hereafter determined not exceeding 1.25% per annum, and shall be payable in not more than
forty (40) annual principal installments serially beginning November 1, 2024 (or such other date
as approved by an Authorized Officer), and annually on each November 1 thereafter, with the
first installment coming due not later one (1) year from the date of delivery/funding of the
Bonds.

The Bonds may be issued in one or more series, as approved by an Authorized Officer. If
more than one series of Bonds is issued, the title for the bond issue shall be revised to reflect the
year that the series of Bonds is issued, and, if necessary, any series designation.

An Authorized Officer, or a designee thereof, is hereby authorized to: approve and/or
adjust the maturity schedule, including the dates/years for the first and last maturities for the
Bonds; approve and/or adjust the interest payment dates; determine (after consultation with the
Issuer's financial advisor and/or bond counsel) the priority of the statutory lien on the Net
Revenues of the System associated with the Bonds; and/or reduce the principal amount of the
borrowing as deemed necessary and reasonable to the Project.

The Bonds are expected to be delivered to the Government as the initial purchaser thereof
in installments (the “Delivery Installments™} and each Delivery Installment shall be noted on the
registration grid set forth on the applicable Bonds. The Delivery Installments shall be deemed to
correspond to the serial principal installments of the applicable Bonds in direct chronological
order of said serial principal installments.




The serial principal installments of the Bonds will each bear interest from the date of
delivery of the corresponding Delivery Installment to the registered holder thereof as shown on
the registration grid set forth on the Bonds at the rate of not to exceed 1.25% per annum, payable
on May 1, 2024, and semiannually thereafter on November 1 and May 1 (or such other interest
payment dates as shall be approved by an Authorized Officer) of each year until maturity or
earlier prepayment of said installment. Acceptance of the interest rate on the Bonds shall be
made by execution of the Bonds which so designates the rate specified by the Government and
accepted in writing by the Issuer. The Bonds shall be issued in fully-registered form and each
series of the Bonds shall not be convertible or exchangeable into more than one fully-registered
bond.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 517 of the Revised Municipal Finance Act, Act 34,
Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (the "Act"), the Issuer has been designated as a
“qualified” issuer and the Issuer is authorized to issue and sell the Bonds. Thus, the Issuer’s
Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate privately the sale of the
Bonds to the Government at an interest rate not to exceed 1.25% per annum. Further, based upon
expense considerations associated with publishing a notice of sale, as specified in Section 309(2)
of the Act, as well as the advantages and favorable terms (including the interest rate and reduced
costs of issuance) reasonably expected to be realized from selling the Bonds to the Government
through a negotiated sale versus selling the Bonds on the open market through a competitive
sale, the Issuer authorizes the negotiated sale of the Bonds to the Government, without
publication of a notice of sale. The Issuer hereby determines that it is in the best interest of the
Issuer to accept the offer from the Government to purchase the Bonds at the price of par and at
an interest rate not to exceed 1.25% per annum, and the Issuer hereby determines to sell the
Bonds to the Government pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance.

An Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to deliver the Bonds in accordance with the
delivery instructions of the Government, after approval of the issuance and sale thereof by the
Department of Treasury, if such approval is at that time required.

The Bonds or installments thereof will be subject to prepayment prior to maturity in the
manner and at the times as provided in the form of the Bonds set forth in the form of the bond as
attached as Exhibit A, and as otherwise provided by this Ordinance.

Section 6. Bond Registration and Transfer. The Transfer Agent shall keep or cause to
be kept at its principal office sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds,
which shall at all times be open to inspection by the Issuer. The Transfer Agent shall transfer or
cause to be transferred on said books Bonds presented for transfer, as hereinafter provided and
subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe.

Any Bond may be transferred upon the books required to be kept by the Transfer Agent
pursuant to this Section, by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly
authorized attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for transfer, accompanied by delivery of a duly
executed written instrument of transfer in a form approved by the Transfer Agent. Whenever any
Bond or Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer, the Transfer Agent shall record such transfer on

4



the registration books and shall register such transfer on the registration grid attached to the
Bond. At the time of such transfer the Transfer Agent shall note on the Bond the outstanding
principal amount thereof at the time of such transfer. The Transfer Agent shall require the
payment by the bondholder requesting the transfer of any tax or other governmental charge
required to be paid with respect to the transfer. The Issuer shall not be required to: (A) issue,
register the transfer of, or exchange any Bond during a period beginning at the opening of
business fifteen days before the day of the mailing of a notice of prepayment of Bonds or
installments thereof selected for redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of that
mailing; or (B) register the transfer of or exchange any Bond or portion thereof so selected for
prepayment. In the event any Bond is called for prepayment in part, the Transfer Agent, upon
surrender of the Bond, shall note on the Bond the principal amount prepaid and shall return the
Bond to the registered owner thereof together with the prepayment amount on the prepayment
date.

An Authorized Officer is hereby appointed to act as Transfer Agent with respect to the
Bonds. If and at such time as a series of the Bonds is transferred to or held by any registered
owner other than the Government, the Issuer by resolution may appoint a bank or trust company
qualified under Michigan law to act as transfer agent and paying agent/bond registrar with
respect to such series, and the Issuer may thereafter appoint a successor Transfer Agent upon
sixty (60) days notice to the registered owner of the applicable series of the Bonds.

Section 7, Pavment of the Bonds. Principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be
payable in lawful money of the United States of America by check or draft mailed by the
Transfer Agent to the registered owner at the address of the registered owner as shown on the
registration books of the Issuer kept by the Transfer Agent. If the Government shall no longer be
the registered owner of the Bonds, then the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be
payable to the registered owner of record as of the fifteenth day of the month preceding the
payment date by check or draft mailed to the registered owner at the registered address. Such
date of determination of the registered owner for purposes of payment of principal or interest
may be changed by the Issuer to conform to future market practice. An Authorized Officer is
also hereby authorized to execute an agreement with any successor Transfer Agent.

The Transfer Agent shall record on the registration books the payment by the Issuer of
each installment of principal or interest or both on the Bonds when made, and the canceled
checks or drafts representing such payments shall be returned to and retained by an Authorized
Officer, which canceled checks or drafts shall be conclusive evidence of such payments and the
obligation of the Issuer with respect to such payments shall be discharged to the extent of such

payments.

Upon payment by the Issuer of all outstanding principal of and interest on a series of the
Bonds, the registered owners thereof shall deliver the Bond or Bonds to the Issuer for
cancellation.

Section 8. Execution and Delivery of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be manually signed
by the Mayor and countersigned by the City Clerk and shall have the corporate seal of the Issuer

5




affixed thereto or impressed thereon. After execution, the Bonds shall be held by an Authorized
Officer for delivery to the Government. No Bond or any installment thereof shall be valid until
registered by an Authorized Officer or by another person designated in writing by an Authorized
Officer to act as Bond Registrar, or upon transfer by the Government and thereafter, by an
authorized representative of the Transfer Agent.

Section 9. Bond Form. The form and tenor of the Bonds shall be in substantially the
form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to appropriate variation upon issuance of any
additional bonds.

Section 10. Security for Bonds. The Bonds hereby authorized, together with interest
thereon, shall be payable solely from the net income and Net Revenues to be derived from the
operation of the System. To pay such principal and interest as and when same shall become due,
there is hereby created a statutory lien upon the whole of the Net Revenues of the System, the
priority of which lien shall be determined by an Authorized Officer or a designee thereof, to
continue until the payment in full of the principal and interest on the Bonds and said revenues
shall be set aside for that purpose and identified as the "Bond and Interest Redemption Fund
Account”.

Section 11. Budget. Immediately upon the effective date of this Ordinance for the
remainder of the current Fiscal Year, and thereafter prior to the beginning of each subsequent
Fiscal Year, the Issuer shall prepare an annual budget for the System for the ensuing Fiscal Year
itemized on the basis of monthly requirements. A copy of such budget shall be mailed to the
Government without request from the Government for review prior to adoption (as long as the
Government is the registered owner of any of the Bonds), and upon written request to any other
registered owners of the Bonds.

Section 12, Rates and Charges. Rates and charges for the services of the System have
been, and will continue to be, fixed by ordinance in an amount sufficient to pay the costs of
administration, operation and maintenance of the System, to pay the principal of and interest on
the Bonds and to meet the requirements for repair, replacement, reconstruction and improvement
and all other requirements provided herein, and otherwise comply with the covenants herein
provided. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees to fix and maintain at all times, while any of
the Bonds shall be outstanding, such rates for service furnished by the System as shall be
sufficient to provide for the foregoing expenses, requirements and covenants, and to create a
Bond and Interest Redemption Account (including a Bond Reserve Account) for all such Bonds.
The rates and charges for all services and facilities rendered by the System shall be reasonable
and just, taking into consideration the cost and value of the System and the cost of maintaining,
repairing, and operating the same and the amounts necessary for the retirement of all the Bonds,
the Outstanding Bonds and accruing interest on all of the Bonds, and there shall be charged such
rates and charges as shall be adequate to meet the requirements of this Section, and as otherwise
required by this Ordinance.

Section 13. Rates, Billing and Enforcement. Except as provided in Section 12 above,
the rates charged for the services of the System, and the billing, enforcement, and collection of

6




charges for such services, as well as the general management of the System, shall be as in effect
in the Issuer's jurisdiction as of the date of the issuance of the Bonds, and as adjusted from time
to time by the Issuer, provided by the ordinances and resolutions of the Issuer.

Section _14. Custodian of Funds; Funds and Accounts. An Authorized Officer shall
be custodian of all funds belonging to or associated with the System. An Authorized Officer is
hereby directed to create and maintain the following funds and accounts into which the proceeds
of the Bonds and the Revenues from the System shall be deposited in the manner and at the times
provided in this Ordinance, which funds and accounts shall be established and maintained,
except as otherwise provided, so long as the Bonds remain unpaid.

A. Sewage Collection System Receiving Account. Upon and after the effective
date of this Ordinance, the Revenues of the System shall be set aside into a separate account to
be designated the SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM RECEIVING ACCOUNT (the
“Receiving Account™), and moneys so deposited therein shall be transferred, expended and used
only in the manner and order as follows:

(1)  Operation and Maintenance Account. There is hercby established a
separate account to be designated the OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT (the
“Operation and Maintenance Account”). Revenues shall be transferred each quarter of the Fiscal
Year, commencing upon the effective date of this Ordinance, from the Receiving Account to the
Operation and Maintenance Account to pay the reasonable and necessary current expenses of
administration, operation and maintenance of the System for the ensuing quarter.

2) Sewage Collection System Revenue Bonds - Bond and Interest
Redemption Account. There is hereby established a separate account to be designated as the
SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM PROJECT - BOND AND INTEREST REDEMPTION
ACCOUNT (the “Bond and Interest Redemption Account”). After the transfer required in (1)
above, Revenues shall be transferred each quarter of the Fiscal Year, commencing July 1, 2024,
from the Receiving Account, before any other expenditures or transfer therefrom, and deposited
in the Bond and Interest Redemption Account for payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds and to fund the Bond Reserve Account.

Upon any delivery of an installment of the Bonds there shall be set aside at the time of
delivery and on the first day of each quarter of the Fiscal Year thereafter to the next interest
payment date an amount equal to that fraction of the amount of interest due on the next interest
payment date on the installment so delivered, the numerator of which is 1 and the denominator of
which is the number of full and partial Fiscal Year quarters from the date of the delivery to the
next interest payment date. There shall be set aside each quarter of the Fiscal Year on or after
July 1, 2024, an amount not less than % of the amount of interest due on the next interest
payment date on all outstanding installments of the Bond not delivered during the then-current
interest payment period.

Upon any delivery of an installment of the Bonds there shall be set aside at the time of
such delivery and on the first day of each quarter of the Fiscal Year thereafter to the next

7




principal payment date an amount equal to that fraction of the amount of principal due on the
next principal payment date on the installment so delivered, the numerator of which is 1 and the
denominator of which is the number of full and partial Fiscal Year quarters from the date of the
delivery to the next principal payment date. There shall also be set aside each quarter of the
Fiscal Year on or after July 1, 2024, an amount not less than 1/4 of the amount of principal due
on the next principal payment date. Except as hereinafter provided, no further deposits shall be
made into the Bond and Interest Redemption Account (excluding the Bond Reserve Account)
once the aforesaid sums have been deposited therein. Any amount on deposit in the Bond and
Interest Redemption Account (excluding the Bond Reserve Account) in excess of (a) the amount
needed for payment of principal installments of the Bonds for the then current principal payment
period, plus (b) interest on the Bonds for the then-current interest payment period, shall be used
by the Issuer for redemption of principal installments of the Bonds in the manner set forth in this
Ordinance, or if such use is impractical, shall be deposited in or credited to the Receiving
Account,

If for any reason there is a failure to make the quarterly deposit in the amounts required,
then the entire amount of the deficiency shall be set aside and deposited in the Bond and Interest
Redemption Account out of the Revenues first received thereafter which are not required by this
Ordinance to be deposited in the Operation and Maintenance Account or in the Bond and Interest
Redemption Account, which amount shall be in addition to the regular quarterly deposit required
during the succeeding quarter or quarters.

There is hereby established in the Bond and Interest Redemption Account a separate
account to be designated the SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM PROJECT BOND RESERVE
ACCOUNT (the “Bond Reserve Account”). Commencing July 1, 2024, there shall be made a
separate withdrawal from the Receiving Account on the first day of each quarter of the Fiscal
Year and set aside in and transferred to the Bond Reserve Account, after provision has been
made for the Operation and Maintenance Account and the current requirements of the Bond and
Interest Redemption Account, the sum of not less than $2,050 per each quarter of the Fiscal Year
(88,200 aggregate per Fiscal Year) until there is accumulated in the Bond Reserve Account the
aggregate sum of $82,000, with such amounts to be allocated between/among series of the Bonds
in the event the Bonds are issued in more than one series. Except as hereinafter provided, no
further deposits shall be made into the Bond and Interest Redemption Account for the purposes
of the Bond Reserve Account once the aggregate sum of $82,000 has been deposited therein. The
moneys in the Bond Reserve Account shall be used solely for the payment of the principal
installments of and interest on the Bonds as to which there would otherwise be default; provided,
however, that in the event the amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve Account exceeds the
Reserve Amount, the moneys in excess of the Reserve Amount shall be used to pay principal
installment of and interest on the Bonds on the next payment date.

If at any time it shall be necessary to use moneys in the Bond Reserve Account for the
payment, then the moneys so used shall be replaced from the Net Revenues first received
thereafter which are not required by this Ordinance to be used for operation and maintenance or
for current principal and interest requirements for the Bonds,

8



No further payments need be made into the Bond and Interest Redemption Account after
enough of the principal installments of the Bonds have been retired so that the amount then held
in the Bond and Interest Redemption Account (including the Bond Reserve Account), is equal to
the entire amount of principal and interest which will be payable at the time of maturity of all the
principal installments of the Bonds then remaining outstanding,

(3)  Repair. Replacement and Improvement Account. There is hereby
gstablished a separate account designated REPAIR, REPLACEMENT AND IMPROVEMENT
ACCOUNT (the “RRI Account™). Moneys in the RRI Account shall be used and disbursed only
for the purpose of paying the cost of: (a) repairing any damage to and emergency maintenance of
the System; (b) repairing or replacing obsolete, deteriorating, deteriorated or worn out portions
of the System; (c) acquiring and constructing extensions and improvements to the System; and
{(d) when necessary, for the purpose of making payments of principal and interest on the Bonds.
If the amount in the Bond and Interest Redemption Account and the Bond Reserve Account is
not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due, the moneys in the RRI
Account shall be transferred to the Bond and Interest Redemption Account and used for that

purpose.

4 Reverse Flow of Funds: Surplus Money. In the event the moneys in the
Receiving Account are insufficient to provide for the current requirements of the Operating and
Maintenance Account, the Bond and Interest Redemption Account (including the Bond Reserve
Account) or the RRI Account, any moneys and/or securities in the funds of the System described
by this Ordinance shall be transferred, first, to the Operation and Maintenance Account, second,
the Bond and Interest Redemption Account, and third, to the RRI Account.

All moneys remaining in the Receiving Account at the end of any Fiscal Year after
satisfying the above requirements for the deposit of moneys into the Operation and Maintenance
Account, the Bond and Interest Redemption Account and the RRI Account may be transferred to
the Bond and Interest Redemption Account and used to call Bonds or portions thereof for
redemption, or at the option of the Issuer, transferred to the RRI Account and used for the
purpose for which the funds were established; provided, however, that if there should be a deficit
in the Operation and Maintenance Account, the Bond and Interest Redemption Account, the
Bond Reserve Account or the RRT Account, on account of defaults in setting aside therein the
amounts hereinbefore required, then transfers shall be made from such moneys remaining in the
Receiving Account to such funds in the priority and order named in this Section, to the extent of
such deficits.

Section 15. No Kree Service. No free service shall be furnished by the System to any
individual, firm or corporation, public or private, or to any public agency or instrumentality.

Section 16. Covenants. The Issuer covenants and agrees with the holder(s) of the
Bonds that so long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding and unpaid as to either principal or
interest that it will keep and maintain each of the following covenants and agreements:




The Issuer covenants to operate the System and to fix rates and charges for the
services of the System sufficient to provide Net Revenues equal to at least 100%
of the debt service requirements of the Bonds. Rates and charges for the services
of the System shall be fixed in an amount sufficient to pay the costs of operating
and maintaining the System, and to provide sufficient revenue for the payment of
principal and interest on the Bonds, debt service, reserve, replacement and
improvement requirements, and all other requirements provided herein.

The Issuer will comply with applicable State laws and regulations and continually
operate and maintain the System in good condition.

The Issuer will cause to be maintained and kept proper books of record and
account, separate from all other records and accounts, in which shall be made full
and correct entries of all transactions relating to the System. The Issuer’s City
Commission shall cause an annual audit of such books and records and account
for the preceding operating year to be made by a recognized independent certified
public accountant, and will mail such audit to the supervisor/manager of the
account or syndicate purchasing the Bonds. Such audit shall be completed and so
made available not later than six (6) months after the close of each operating year.

The Issuer will maintain and carry, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds,
insurance on all physical properties of the System of the kind and in the amounts
normally carried by municipalities engaged in the operation of municipal sewage
collection systems. All monies received from losses under such insurance policies
shall be applied solely to the replacement and restoration of the property damaged
or destroyed, and to the extent not so used, shall be used for the purposes of
calling Bonds.

Any extensions to or improvements of the System shall be made according to
sound engineering principies and plans.

The Issuer will periodically review the System's rates and charges for services to
ensure that same are adequate to pay the costs of operating and maintaining the
System and to provide sufficient revenue for the payment of principal and interest
on the Bonds, debt service, replacement and improvement requirements, and any
other necessary and reasonable expenses and charges. If the System's rates and
charges are found to be insufficient to pay the aforementioned expenses and costs,
the Issuer shall adjust the System's rates and charges as necessary to comply with
this provision. Said review of the System's rates and charges shall be conducted at
least annually.

Section 17. Additional Bonds. The Issuer may issue additional bonds of equal standing

with the Bonds only for the purposes and on the conditions for the following purposes and on the
following conditions:

A

B.

To complete the construction of the Project as described herein, bonds in the
amount necessary may be issued.

For the purposes of making reasonable repair, replacement, or extension to the
System, additional bonds of equal standing may be issued if, together with
projected net revenues, Net Revenues will equal or exceed one hundred percent

10




{100%) of proposed new debt service on all bonds, including the additional bonds
proposed to be issued.

The funds herein established shall be applied to all additional bonds issued pursuant to
this Section as if said bonds were part of the original issuance of the Bonds, and all revenues
from any such extension or replacement constructed with the proceeds of an additional bond
issue shall be paid to the Receiving Account described in this Ordinance.

Section 18. Ordinance Shall Constitute Contract. The provisions of this Ordinance
shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the bondholders, and after the issuance of the
Bonds this Ordinance shall not be repealed or amended in any respect which will adversely
affect the rights and interests of the holders nor shall the Issuer adopt any law, ordinance or
resolution in any way adversely affecting the rights of the holders so long as the Bonds or
interest thereon remains unpaid.

Section 19. Refunding of Bonds. If at any time it shall appear to the Government that
the Issuer is able to refund upon call for redemption or with consent of the Government the then
outstanding Bonds by obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private
credit sources at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods of time,
the Issuer will, upon request of the Government, apply for and accept such loan in sufficient
amount to repay the Government and will take all such actions as may be required in connection
with such loans,

Section 20. Ordinance Subject to Michigan L.aw and Governmental Regulations.
The provistons of this Ordinance are subject to the laws of the State of Michigan and to the
present and future regulations of the Government not inconsistent with the express provisions
hereof and Michigan law.

Section 21. Fiscal Year of System. The fiscal year for operating the System shall be the
Fiscal Year.

Section 22. Issuer Subject to Loan Resolution, As long as the Government is holder
of any of the Bonds, the Issuer shall be subject to the loan resolution (RUS Bulletin 1780-27) and
shall comply with all provisions thereof.

Section 23, Covenant Not to Defease. As long as the Government is the holder of any
of the Bonds, the Issuer covenants that it will not defease any of the Bonds held by the
Government.

Section 24. Approval of Bond Details. Fach Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to
adjust the final bond details set forth herein to the extent necessary or convenient to complete the
transaction authorized herein, and in pursuance of the foregoing each is authorized to exercise
the authority and make the determinations authorized pursvant to Section 7a(1){(c) of Act 94,
including but not limited to determinations regarding interest rates, prices, discounts, maturities,
principal amounts, denominations, dates of issuance, interest payment dates, redemption rights,

11




the place of delivery and payment, and other matters and to so modify the terms of this
Ordinance, provided that the principal amount of Bonds issued shall not exceed the principal
amount authorized in this Ordinance, the interest rate per annum on the Bonds shall not exceed
1.25%, and the Bonds shall mature in not more than forty (40) annual installments.

Section 25. Application to Department of Treasury and Other Governmental
Agencies. The Authorized Officers, City Commission members, staff, counsel and bond counsel
for the Tssuer, or any of them, arc authorized on behalf of the Issuer to apply for such rulings,
order and approvals and file or submit such elections or other documents to any governmental
agency and execute all necessary documents on behalf of the Issuer in order that the Bonds may
be validly issued and the interest thereon be exempt from federal income taxation and are further
hereby authorized to execute, date and deliver such other certificates, documents, instruments,
and opinions and other papers as may be required or as may be necessary or convenient to
effectuate the sale and delivery of the Bonds,

Section 26. Advance Payment of Project Costs. The advance payment for the Project
is hereby approved, and the monies are authorized to be advanced from the Issuer's funds on
hand, which monies will be repaid with a like amount, plus interest from the date of withdrawal,
from the proceeds of the Bonds when received. The Issuer shall reimburse itself not earlier than
the date on which the costs and expenses are paid and not later than the later of:

A. the date that is eighteen (18) months after the costs and expenses are paid; or

B. the date the Project placed in service or abandoned, but in no event more than
three (3) years after the costs and expenses are paid.

Section 27. Bond Counsel. Thrun Law Firm, P.C., is hereby appointed as bond counsel
for the Issuer with reference to the issuance of the Bonds. Further, Thrun Law Firm, P.C., has
informed the City Commission that it represents no other party in the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 28. Conflict and Severability. All ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts
thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby
repealed, and each Section of this Ordinance and each subdivision of any Section hereof is
hereby declared to be independent, and the finding or holding of any Section or subdivision
thereof to be invalid or void shall not be deemed or held to affect the validity of any other
Section or subdivision of this Ordinance.

Section 29, Headings. The paragraph/section headings in this Ordinance are furnished
for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered to be a part of this Ordinance.

Section 30. Publication and Recordation. This Ordinance shall be published once in
full in a newspaper of general circulation within the corporate limits of the Issuer, qualified
under Michigan law to publish the legal notice, promptly after its adoption, and the same shall be
recorded in the ordinance book of the Issuer and such recording authenticated by the signatures
of the Mayor and City Clerk.

12




Section 31. [Effective Date. This Ordinance is hereby determined by the City
Commission to be immediately necessary for the preservation of the peace, health and safety of
the Issuer and shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication as

required by law.

APPROVED AND ENACTED by the City Commission of the City of Parchment,
County of Kalamazoo, State of Michigan, on September 18, 2023.

Robert D. Britigan I, Mayor
City of Parchment

I, Shannon Stutz, City Clerk of the City of Parchment, hereby certify that the foregoing is
a true copy of the original of Ordinance No. _ , enacted by the City of Parchment City
Commission at a regular meeting on September 18, 2023,

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk
City of Parchment

13



EXHIBIT A

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF KALAMAZQOO
CITY OF PARCHMENT
2023 SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM REVENUE BOND
RATE PRINCIPAL MATURITY DATE DATE OF
AMOUNT ORIGINAL ISSUE

1.25% $4,000,000 November 1 of each ,2023

year per “Schedule A”

attached hereto

REGISTERED OWNER:  UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

CITY OF PARCHMENT, COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO, STATE OF MICHIGAN (the
“Issuer”), promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above, or registered assigns, out of
the net revenues of the Issuer’s sewage collection system, including all appurtenances, additions,
extensions and improvements thereto (the “System™), the Principal Amount specified above, in
lawful money of the United States of America on the Maturity Date specified above, with interest
thereon from the Date of Original Issue specified above, or subsequent dates of installment
deliveries, until paid at the Rate specified above payable on May 1, 2024, and semiannually
thereafter on November 1 and May 1 of each year (the "Bond" or "Bonds"); provided that the
principal repayments required herein to be paid to the Registered Owner shall not exceed the total
of the principal installments set forth on the registration grid attached hereto as “Schedule B” as
from time to time hereafter updated by an Authorized Officer of the Issuer (the “Bond Registrar”)
to acknowledge receipt of the principal installments of this Bond up to a total of $4,000,000.
Principal on this Bond is payable at the office of the Bond Registrar pursuant to “Schedule A”, and
upon final principal payment, upon presentation and surrender hereof,

Both principal of and interest on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of
America to the Registered Owner by check or draft mailed to the Registered Owner at the
registered address shown on the registration books of the Bond Registrar. The Issuer may hereafter
designate a successor Bond Registrar upon the conditions specified in Ordinance No. __, enacted
by the Issuer’s City Commission on September 18, 2023 (the “Ordinance”), authorizing the
issuance of this Bond. For the prompt payment thereof, the revenues of the System, after provision
has been made for reasonable and necessary expenses of operation, administration and
maintenance thereof (the “Net Revenues”), are hereby irrevocably pledged and a statutory lien
thereon is hereby recognized and created.

This Bond is a single, fully-registered instrument evidencing multiple annual maturities
delivered in installments and registered as of the date of each installment as set forth in “Schedule
B”, aggregating the principal sum of $4,000,000, issued pursuant to the Ordinance, and under and

14



in full compliance with the constitution and statutes of the State of Michigan, including specifically
Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, and Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as
amended, for the purpose of defraying a portion of the cost of improving the System. For a
complete statement of the revenues from which, and the conditions under which, this Bond is
payable, a statement of the conditions under which additional bonds of equal standing may
hereafter be issued, and the general covenants and provisions pursuant to which this Bond is
issued, reference is made to the Ordinance.

This Bond is a self-liquidating bond and is payable, both as to principal and interest, solely
from the Net Revenues of the System. This Bond is not a general obligation of the Issuer and does
not constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within any constitutional, statutory or charter
limitation. The principal of and interest on this Bond are secured by the statutory lien hereinbefore
mentioned.

Principal installments of this Bond are subject to prepayment prior to maturity, in any order
and at any time, at par and accrued interest to the date fixed for prepayment. Thirty (30) days’
notice of the call of any principal installment for prepayment shall be given by mail to the
Registered Owner at the registered address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond
Registrar, The principal installments so called for prepayment shall not bear interest after the date
fixed for prepayment, provided funds are on hand with the Bond Registrar to prepay said
installments.

This Bond is registered as to principal and interest and is transferable, as provided in the
Ordinance, only upon the books of the Issuer kept for that purpose by the Bond Registrar, by the
Registered Owner hercof in person or by an agent of the Registered Owner duly authorized in
writing, upon the surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory
to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or agent thereof and thereupon a new
Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount and of the same maturity shall be issued to
the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Ordinance and upon payment of the charges,
if any, therein provided.

The Issuer has covenanted and agreed and does hereby covenant and agree to fix and maintain
at all times while any bonds, including any installments of this Bond, payable from the Net
Revenues of the System shall be outstanding, such rates for service furnished by the System as
shall be sufficient to provide for payment of the interest upon and the principal of this Bond and
any additional bonds of equal standing payable from the Net Revenues of the System as and when
the same become due and payable, and to create a bond and interest redemption account (including
bond reserve account) therefor, to provide for the payment of expenses of administration and
operation and such expenses for maintenance of the System as are necessary to preserve the same
in good repair and working order, and to provide for such other expenditures and funds for the
System as are required by the Ordinance.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required by law to be done

precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been done, have happened and have been
performed in regular and due time and form as required by law.

15



This Bond shall not be deemed a valid and binding obligation of the Issuer in the absence of
authentication by manual execution hereof by the authorized signatory of the Bond Registrar.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City of Parchment, County of Kalamazoo, State of Michigan, by its
City Commission, has caused this Bond to be signed in its name by its Mayor and to be
countersigned by its City Clerk, and its corporate seal or a facsimile thereof to be hereunto affixed
or impressed, all as of , 2023, and to be manually signed by the authorized
signatory of the Bond Registrar as of the date set forth below.

CITY OF PARCHMENT

COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO

STATE OF MICHIGAN
(Seal) By:

Mayor
Countersigned:
City Clerk
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
Dated:
This Bond is the Bond described
in the within mentioned Ordinance.
By:
Bond Registrar

16



City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County, Michigan (the “Issuer”)

A regular meeting of the Issuer’s City Commission was held in the City Hall, on Tuesday,
the 18th day of September, 2023, at 7:00 o’clock in the p.m. (the “Meeting”).

The Meeting was called to order by Mayor Britigan.

Present: Commission Members

Absent: Commission Members

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Mayor Britigan and supported by
Commission Member :

WHEREAS:

1. The Issuer’s City Commission has determined that it will be necessary to issue
bonds of the Issuer pursuant to the Revenue Bond Act, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as
amended (“Act 947), for the purpose of financing all or a portion of the cost of the Issuer’s sewage
collection system project more fully described in the Notice attached to this resolution as Exhibit

Z v A, as well as all other necessary and related improvements (the “Project”); and

2

14 2. Act 94 requires the publication of a notice of intent to issue the bonds necessary to

E 3 produce the monies required to finance all or a portion of the cost of the Project; and

3. The cost for the Project is estimated to be not exceed Five Million Dollars
($5,000,000); and

4. Not to exceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) of the aggregate Project costs,
including the costs of issuance for the bonds, is proposed to be financed by the issuance of the
Issuer’s Sewage Collection System Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds™) in one or more series to pay the
Project costs; and

5. The City Commission now desires to authorize and approve the publication of a
Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds required by Act 94 in substantially the form of the notice attached
to this resolution as Exhibit A; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The City Clerk, or a designee thereof, shall cause a notice, in substantially the form
as attached hereto as Exhibit A, to be published in the , a newspaper of general

circulation within the City of Parchment, as a display ad of at least 1/4 page in size.

2. Pursuant to Act 94 and the Revised Municipal Finance Act, Act 34, Public Acts of
Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”), the foregoing notice and method of publication thereof
are hereby determined to be adequate to notify the Issuer’s residents and electors of their
referendum rights and of the nature of the debt obligations proposed to be issued.

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.




Ayes:  Commission Members
Nays:  Commission Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo
County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a
resolution adopted by the City Commission at the Meeting, the original of which is part of the City
Commission’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was given to

the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, Public Acts of
Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk
[FK/baf

Z;
=)
=
T
=




EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE REVENUE BONDS
AND NOTICE OF RIGHT OF REFERENDUM

TO THE ELECTORS AND TAXPAYERS
OF THE CITY OF PARCHMENT
AND CUSTOMERS AND USERS OF THE
CITY'S SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM

TAKE NOTICE THAT the City Commission of the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo
County, Michigan (the "City"), intends to authorize the issuance of not to exceed Five Million
Dollars (§5,000,000) City of Parchment Sewage Collection System Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds")
pursuant to the Revenue Bond Act, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, as amended (the
“Revenue Bond Act”), for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the costs of the acquisition
and construction of improvements and extensions to the City’s sewage collection system,
including, but not limited to, acquiring related equipment, improvements and appurtenances, and
the acquisition of any necessary easements, rights in land, and paying engineering and financing
costs (the “Project”). The Bonds may be issued by the City in one or more series, the aggregate
principal amount of which will not exceed $5,000,000.

The Bonds will be payable primarily from revenues derived from rates and charges
received from users and customers of the City's sewage collection system and will be payable in
not more than forty (40) annual installments at a rate of interest to be determined upon sale of the
Bonds not to exceed five percent (5.0%) per annum, payable on the unpaid principal balance from
time to time remaining outstanding on the Bonds. The City expects that the bonds will be issued
to United States of America, through its Department of Agriculture, Rural Development, at an interest
rate of 1.25%.

Z:
=
I :
T,
=

The total cost of the Project is estimated to not exceed $5,000,000, all or a portion of which
cost is to be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds.

SOURCE OF FUNDING

The United States of America, through its Department of Agriculture, Rural Development,
makes funds available for community facility projects through a program administered by USDA
Rural Development. The City anticipates issuing the Bonds through that loan program, and will
seek to finance all or a portion of the cost of the sewage collection system project through the
issuance of its Bonds. In the alternative, the City would seek to issue the Bonds to an underwriter,
local bank, or financial institution. Any portion of the cost of the sewage collection system project
that will not be financed through the issuance of the Bonds will be paid for by the City using
available funds on hand.

SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF THE BONDS

The principal of and interest on the bonds shall be payable primarily or solely from the net
revenues derived from the operation of the City’s sewage collection system remaining after




payment of operation and maintenance expenses. Those revenues consist of rates and charges for
services, including connection fees, which rates and charges are required to be maintained and
increased from time to time in order to provide sufficient revenues to meet expenses for operating
and maintaining the sewage collection system, anticipated principal of and interest on the Bonds,
and to provide reserves for payment thereof. A schedule of those rates and charges is on file in the
office of the City Manager of the City of Parchment, City Hall, 650 S. Riverview Drive,
Parchment, MI 49004,

NOTICE OF RIGHT OF REFERENDUM

THIS NOTICE IS GIVEN PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE REVENUE
BOND ACT. IF WITHIN FORTY-FIVE (45) DAYS FROM THE PUBLICATION OF THIS
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS A PETITION SIGNED BY NOT LESS THAN TEN
PERCENT (10%) OF THE REGISTERED ELECTORS RESIDING WITHIN THE LIMITS OF
THE CITY OF PARCHMENT SHALL HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK
REQUESTING A REFERENDUM ON THE QUESTION OF THE ISSUANCE OF THE
BONDS, THEN THE SAME SHALL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL APPROVED BY THE VOTE
OF THE MAJORITY OF THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY QUALIFIED TO VOTE AND
VOTING THEREON AT A GENERAL OR SPECIAL ELECTION.

Further information regarding the Project and the Bonds described herein is available at
the office of the City Manager of the City of Parchment, City Hall, 650 S. Riverview Drive,
Parchment, MI 49004 (phone 269-349-3785).

Z:
=
o -
€I
F:

Dated: , 2023

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk
City of Parchment




LEASE AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS

THIS AGREEMENT, is made this ___ day of August, 2023, by and between the CITY
OF PARCHMENT, a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 850 South Riverview
Drive, Parchment, Ml 49004 ("Lessors"); and the CITY OF KALLAMAZOO, a Michigan
municipal corporation, whose address is 241 West South Street, Kalamazoo, Michigan,
49007 ("Lessee") as follows:

WHEREAS, Lessors are the owners of certain property at 300 MAPLE STREET in the
City of Parchment, County of Kalamazoo, described as:

N 1/2N1/2 SW 1/4 SEC 2, TOWN 2 S, R 11 W, EXC BEG 241.6 FT S & 33 FT
E OF W 1/4 POST SEC 2 ; TH S PAR W LN OF SD SEC421.14 FT TO S LI
N1/2 N1/2 SW1/4 SD SEC TH E ALG SD S LI 1146.52 FT TH N 50 DEG 17
MIN W 673.15 FT TH W 260.11 FT TH S 9 FT TH W 368 FT TO BEG*
(KINDLEBERGER PARK),

WHEREAS, Lessee wishes to use a limited portion of this property for a limited time to
access and fraverse over private property and to place temporary hydrogen sulfide air
monitoring equipment. The limited portion of property shall only include a 25 square foot area
on the roof of the Parchment Public Works Department building where located and approved
by the Parchment City Manager.

WHEREAS, Lessee wishes to use this property for a limited 5-year time period to
provide access to Lessee's employees and equipment to support the placement of temporary
hydrogen sulfide air monitoring equipment. Work shall consist of construction, placement,
maintenance and removal of two tripod base small diameter metal poles not more than 8 feet
in total height above the roof with solar panel(s), air monitoring sensor(s), data transmitting
device(s) and power supply mounted and affixed to a tripod base metal pole.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed:
Agreement. Lessors agree to lease to Lessee the premises as described above.

Term of Lease. It is agreed that the term of this Lease shall commence immediately
and shall be for a month-to-month tenancy scheduled to terminate on December 31, 2028.

Termination. If, at any time for any reason, either the Lessors or the Lessee wishes to
terminate the Lease Agreement, then either party may terminate this Lease Agreement
without cause after giving 30 days written notice to the other party.

Lease Payment. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the lump sum total of $100.00.

Maintenance and Repair. Lessee agrees to keep the monitoring equipment in good
condition and good repair, and Lessee shall deliver the premises at the end of the Lease



Agreement in like condition, reasonable wear and tear excluded. Lessee shall remove any
and all equipment from the premises at the end of, or termination of, the Lease Agreement
and shall restore the property to its original condition, at its own expense, within thirty (30)
days following receipt of a written notice of termination of the Lease Agreement.

Quiet Possession. Lessors agree that Lessee, upon payment of the Lease payment
and observing the terms of this Lease Agreement, shall have peaceful and quiet enjoyment of
the premises.

Use of Premises. During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall have reasonable
access to the premises for the purposes of installing, maintaining and removing the
monitoring equipment and repairing damage. If the monitoring equipment causes damage to
the roof, Lessee will repair same upon notice at its sole cost.

Non-Assignment. Lessee may not assign, sublet, or transfer this Lease Agreement
without the prior written consent of Lessors.

Taxes. Lessor shall be solely responsible for all real property taxes and assessments
that may be levied or assessed against the premises.

Hold Harmless. Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lessor,
its officers, agents, and employees, from all liability, claims, demands, judgments, and costs
of litigation and actual attorney's fees whatsoever to persons or property directly caused by
any negligence, gross or ordinary, by Lessee or its employees regarding the placement,
maintenance, removal and operation of the monitoring equipment by Lessee, excluding any
acts of Lessor.

CITY OF PARCHMENT
By:
Nancy Stoddard
Its:  City Manager
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on 20
by Nancy Stoddard for and on behalf of the Grantee, the City of Parchment, its City Manager

Notary Public
Kalamazoo County, Michigan
My commission expires:

CITY OF KALAMAZOO



By:

James K. Ritsema
Its:  City Manager

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) s8.
COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on , 20,
by James K. Ritsema for and on behalf of the Grantee, the City of Kalamazoo, its City
Manager.

Notary Public
Kalamazoo County, Michigan
My commission expires:

Prepared By & After Recording Return To:
The Office of City Attorney

City of Kalamazoo

241 W. South St.

Kalamazoo, Ml 49007

(269) 337-8185




Its:  City Manager

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) s8.
COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on , 20
by James K. Ritsema for and on behalf of the Grantee, the City of Kalamazoo, its City
Manager.

Notary Public
Kalamazoo County, Michigan
My commission expires:

Prepared By & After Recording Return To:
The Office of City Attorney

City of Kalamazoo

241 W. South St.

Kalamazoo, Ml 49007

(269) 337-8185




CITY OF PARCHMENT
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN
ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 38, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 38-53,
OF THE PARCHMENT CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REGULATE
THE PLACEMENT AND PICK UP OF LEAVES; TO DELETE CHAPTER 38,
ARTICLE IV, SECTION 38-54 OF THE PARCHMENT CITY CODE OF
ORDINANCES; TO AMEND PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF; TO
REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS THEREOF INCONSISTENT OR

CONTRARY TO THIS ORDINANCE; AND TO ESTABLISH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

THE CITY OF PARCHMENT ORDAINS:
ARTICLE |

Chapter 38, Article |V, Residential Brush, Waste and Tree Removal, Section 38-53,
Placing Leaves in Curb Lawn on Public Street, of the Parchment City Code of Ordinances,
is hereby amended and shall now read:

Sec. 38-53. Placing Leaves in Curb Lawn on Public Street, Exceptions.
The City shall pick up leaves on an annual basis subject to the following:

a. Subject to change, a fall leaf pick up shall occur on any date(s) from
October 1%t to December 1%t as set by the City Commission. The City
may change the date of leaf pick up and will notify residents of specific

pick up days by a sign at the City Hall and on the City Calendar at
www.parchment.org.

b. Leaves shall be placed for pick up as follows:

1. Properties adjacent to Riverview Drive and G Avenue:
Leaves shall be placed in the curb lawn for pick up.

2. All other streets where there is a curb, other than Riverview

Drive and G Avenue: Leaves shall be placed in the street
for pick up.

c. In the spring, there will be a one-time leaf pick up, subject to the
subsections set forth above. Tentatively, that leaf pick up will occur in
April. However, that schedule is dependent upon snow or rain. The

exact date can be seen on the sign at City Hall or on the City Calendar at
www.parchment.org.



d. After fall or spring pick up, leaves which have not been picked up due to
improper or untimely placement, or if those leaves fall after leaf pick up,
they shall be mulched, composted or placed in a yard waste container by
the property owner or occupant.

ARTICLE i

Chapter 38, Article IV, Residential Brush, Waste and Tree Removal, Section 38-54,
Brush Pick Up, of the Parchment City Code of Ordinances, is hereby amended and shall
now read:

Sec. 38-54. Penalties.
Violation of this Article shall be a municipal civil infraction punishable as follows:

First offense: $50.00

Second offense within one year: $100.00
Third offense within two years: $200.00
Fourth offense within three years: $500.00

Each day shall constitute a separate offense. Non-payment of fines shall be added
as liens to the property.

ARTICLE il

All other Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and
shall be of no further force and effect.

ARTICLE IV
Any and all sections, terms, provisions and/or clauses herein shall be deemed
independent and severable. Should any court of competent jurisdiction hold any section,
term, provision or clause void and/or invalid, all remaining sections, terms, provisions
and/or clauses not held void and/or invalid shall continue in force and effect.

ARTICLE V

This Ordinance shall take force and effect on ,2023.




CERTIFICATE

I, Shannon Stutz, City Clerk for the City of Parchment, do hereby certify that the
foregoing Parchment Ordinance No. was adopted by the City Commission at a
regular meeting held on . 2023, and that the following is
a record of the vote of the members of said City Commission on said Ordinance.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Parks and Recreation Committee

Date: September 13, 2023

Re: Urban Forestry Grant Application

Background: Inaccord with the City of Parchment’s Parks and Recreation Plan, the Parks and
Recreation Committee is seeking ways to enhance the number and health of the City’s trees. Initial
efforts of the “Parchment Take Root” program include an educational program focused on the value of
trees to the community; the establishment of an on-going Tree Fund aimed at improving tree numbers,
maintenance, and culture in public areas like Kindleberger Park; and the development of a tree
assessment and planting plan for Kindleberger Park. The Parchment Takes Root booth at the
Kindleberger Festival kicked off the educational component of this initiative. The Tree Fund was
established with $10,000 budgeted by the City Commission, was enhanced by proceeds from the
Festival tree raffle, and will soon be open to donations from the community. Currently, the Parks and
Recreation Committee is working on an Urban and Community Forestry grant application that will fund a
professional inventory, tree health assessment, tree locator map, and on-going maintenance
recommendations for Kindleberger Park. The grant will also include funds for the development of a
professional tree planting plan including site and species recommendation for re-vitalizing the Park’s
tree cover. The cost of these two services totals approximately $14,000. The Urban and Community
Forestry program requires a 1:1 local match for grant funds. The Parks and Recreation Committee is
requesting that the Commission approve using $7,000 from the Tree Fund as the City’s match for the
grant request.

Discussion: These professional evaluations of the tree cover in Kindleberger Park and recommendations
for future planting will present a reasonable and environmentally sound template for tree cover
development for years to come.

While focused on Kindleberger Park, the professional evaluations obtained can also be applied to other
public spaces within the City such as City Hall Park and the riverfront area along Commerce Lane. The
Parks and Recreation Committee understands this as a valuable tool to begin a thoughtful and
environmentally sound tree enhancement program in Parchment.

The Urban and Community Forestry grant programs offers several ways that the amount of local
matching funds might be offset. Credit for volunteer time, administrative grant preparation time etc.
can be translated into a value that lessons the amount of match funds needed.

We hope that resources from the Tree Fund can be used in support of this importanf planning initiative.
It will provide a framework to guide us in the years ahead as we work to enhance Parchment’s tree
cover.



Motion:
Motion to approve the use of $7,000.00 from the Tree Fund as matching funds for the Urban Forestry
Grant.



